Lakes College

LAKES COLLEGE

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st July 2024
www.lcwe.ac.uk




CONTENTS

FINARCIAL HWGHCREETS: 5.0 i e s b i L 1
NATURE. OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES F
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 5
DISABILITY STATEMENT 10

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE: .........o.occooosvesssssssssssrseersseens 21
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION .............22

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE ........... 23
INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)
....................................................................................................................................................................... 24
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)
..................................................................................................................................................................... 25
INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)
...................................................................................................................................................................... 26
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES .......cooeevieioeeies e omsesesemsresssseneen 27

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME —.......ooooeeoeoeeesossosssrssenen: 32
CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES........cocvovnnnnnn 33
BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 JULY 2004 it ettt sos s s oo o 3
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ..o eeness e nnssssecs e 35

MOTES TO THE ACCOLINTS ...t ssinsisssasarsmssimemsesiosssssniasn v - 36
2. EDUCATION CONTRACTS 36
3. TUITION FEES AND CHARGES £
4,  OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7
S INVESTMENT INCOME a7
6. STAFF COSTS a8
T EMOLUMENTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSOMMEL 40
8 (THER OPERATIMNG EXPENSES 42
9. INTEREST PAYABLE 43
10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 43
11, UNLESTED INVESTMENTS a5
12. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN OME YEAR 45
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN OMNE YEAR ]
15. DEFINED BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS 46
1E. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES 50

17, RESERVES 50



18, MOVEMENT ON GENERAL RESERVES ACCOUNT 5l

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 51
20. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 52
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52
22. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE 53
23. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 53
CCIVERINING BIOCIY. e s o i i s s i —
P I O L I L R . e i it o o ot m s e e 4 44 56

REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORPORATION
OF LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE

EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)........cc..cmmrimmmnimieimcissssmasssisinisnane: 57
REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORPORATION
OF LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE
EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)......cccommmmmmmmimcm . 58



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2023-24 2022-23
Income EDDO'S ) E000°S %
Funding Body Grants 14,317 84% 12,820 | B85%
Education Contracts 798 5% 712 5%
_Tuition Fees and Charges BA4 3% 671 4%
Other Operating Income 1,158 T% 890 %
Investment Income 225 1% 52 1%
17,083 100% 16,254 | 100%
| Expenditure
Staff Costs 11,283 B4% 10,784 |  &62%
| Other Gperating Expenses 5082 |  29% 5,178 | 30% |
Depreciation 1,182 % 1,284 B
Inerest Payable 20 - b7 g
o 17,577 100% 17,304 | 100%
(Deficit) (494) {2,050
Consolidated Balance Sheat
2023-24 2022-23
 E000s £000s
Man-Currant Assets 28,048 28,378
Imvestmant in Joint Venture g v
‘Current Assals 3,924 4,038
| Current Lisbilites {3.882) (4.013)
Mt Currant Assats 3z 28
28,080 28,401
Creditors due after 1 year (23,422) Jdad
alinr (22,724)
{218) (236}
Tolal Net Assels 4,440 5441
Restricted reserves
Revaluation reserse 146 KT
Designated reserve 200 175
Mon-restricted reserves
Income & Expendibure 4,094 <4 BAS
4,440 5,441




STRATEGIC REPORT

MATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES
The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2024,

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and is an exempt charity
for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, regulated by the Secratary of State for Education. The
members of the Governing body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on pages 54-55,

The Corporation was incorporated on 12 April 1393 as West Cumbria College. On & August 2001, the
Secretary of State granted consent to the Corporation to change the College’s namae to Lakes College West

Cumbria.

Mission
Lakes Collage has a vision to be an ambitious technical college that enhances the prosperity and prospects

of our people and communities

Our mission and purpose is to defiver excellent technical and professional skills to enhance the prosparity of
our people and communities,

In dalivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of education
by providing high quality leaching, widening participation and tackling social exclusion, prioritising student
achievement and employment oulcomes to meet the skills requirements of employers, primarily in West
Cumbria. The College is committed to finding suitable courses for as many students as possible, regandiess

of their educational background, o support them o swiceed.

The College sirives to serve its local and national commumnity by warking in collaboration with key stakeholders,
io support the implementation of the Local Skills Improvement Plan and working with employers to meet the
skills neads of West Cumbria. This is exemplfied in our position a5 a founding member of the Mational College
for Muchear (MCIN) in partnership with Seflafield Ltd, University of Cumbria, EDF Energy, Bridgwater and
Taunton College and the University of Bristol. The NCN places the College at the centre of national nuclear
skills development. The MNorthern Hub commenced operations in September 2017 and extended operations
focus on HE provision in January 2018, The NCN now offers a wide range of higher apprenticeships up to

full honours degrees which can secure professional chartership

All four Cumbria FE Colleges continue to work collaboratively to support the County's skils needs, most
recently in colfaboration under the Local Skilts Improvement Fund (LSIF) led by Lakes College.

in 2014, Lakes College was confirmed as a UK Quality Assured establishment following a Quality Assurance
Agency for Higher Education (QAA) review. In 2018/19, we secured Office for Students (OFS) registration as
a HE Provider. During 2022-23 we re-secured Matrix, 150 8001, ISO 14001 and Cyber Essentials Plus

accreditations,

In July 2020 the college established a fully owned subsidiary company, Lakes College Enterprises Lid, for the
immediate purpose of transferring cleaning senvices to the company. These services were transfemed on 19
August 2020 and catering services followed on 1% July 2021. The subsidiary activities will be further widened
in 2024725 as a vehicle to support a further TUPE transfer to our group, in support of néw apprenticeship
provisian,

The College has supparted over 500 employers in meating their skills needs.



STRATEGIC REFPORT (continued)

Strategic Priorities
We stive o deliver excellant technical and profassianal skills to enhance the prosperity of our people and
Commnities by
+ Dedivering local, reglonal and national skills priorities to all by collaborating and partnering with
employers and key stakeholders,

= Delivering innovative, ambitious and responsive solutions to mest changing priorities and needs.

* Supporting cur stal 1o build careers delivering exceptional services, thereby delivering sustainable
operations and finances through consistently excellent provision

The overall objective over the next two academic years is to return the College lo 8 sound, sustainable financial
pasdtion, whilst maintaining measured responsiveness and high standards of delivery. We will secure this by

* Achieving a solvent financial position meeting all key financial targets, undarpinned by a sound
business model and appropriate financial control;
* [Prioritising 'eonsolidated growth” whereby we maintain responsiveness fo regional skills and national
priorities based on;
o Selecling opportunities that match sound business model criteria and acceptable ROI;
o Divest of provision that cannal meet sound business maodel and ROI criteria;
¢ Improve efficiency and effectiveness:
Ensure the re-alignment and organisation structure is fit for purpose;
Clear accountability and respansibility are known and understood at the appropriate level;
Resources are utiised effectively and efficiently in delivery;
Minimize waste and reach back wark:
o Ensuring coliege systems are fit for purpose and support staff to operate efficiently;
Inngvation in planning and delvery;
Support our people with flexibiity, reward and recognition;
Progress beyond consistently ‘Good;”
Continue o collaborate and partner o deliver our key objectives,

= Implement and embed a culture change programme o support all to be accountable and responsible
for dalivering our key objectives.

a o oD

Current and Future Developments and Performance

In 2023 the College was awarded the Queen's Anniversary Prize for its outstanding wark in developing highly
skilled technicians for the UK's nuclear and low carbon energy seciors. The work, developed collaborativaly
with industry expents and accredited by the National College for Nuclear, plays a crucial role in shaping site-
ready professionals for vital UK industries.

In January 2024 the College celebeated a glowing Ofsted report rating ils provision 'Good’ overall. Inspectors
said: “Leaders use their acute understanding of local and regional needs and the chaanges specific to the
tocaiity to inform strategic planning of curriculums and the college's offer.” The Callege was rated "Good” in
eight areas assessed, with Adult leaming programmes rated ‘Requires Improvement’,

In summer 2024 we were awarded a significant and prestigious apprenticeship contract which commenced in
September 2024 and meats the College's strategic objectives,

Whilst the above successes featured in 2023124, the college finances were challenged following two years of
sagnificant financial losses as the College grew in response to mesting local skills needs, This resulted in the
requast of financial support in tha form of a Department for Education (DME) loan of £1,5m to support working
capital. This loan is repayable by July 2027. Previously the College had no loans. The Coliege is '
effectively with the FE Comenissioner beam fo support financial improvement planning. This financial
intervention will lead to an FE Commissioner led a Struciure and Prospects Appraisal (SPA) in Spring 2025,



STRATEGIC REFORT (continued)

Financial Performance and Resources

The College experienced & 12% increase in tumover from £15m to £16.8m following an 11% increase the
previous year. Dependency on ESFA grant income decreased marginally to78% (2022-23; 80%). Despite
continued growth, the college generated an operating deficit of 529,000 as a result of confinued increases in

staff costs and non-pay costs.
Oparating cash flow was E873.000 net outfllow compared to 2,259,000 outfow in 2022-23.

The Adull Education Budget was marginally under committed with a small clawback against Free Courses for
Jobs offer. 18-18 numbers increased by 10% on top of growth of 7% the previous year, Apprenticeship starts
were maintained, whitst in-leaming numbers confinue to grow, resulting in 9% growth in income. This
demonstrates the increasing balance of delivery on apprenticeships. our priarity growth anea.

The College does not have a formal reserves policy, but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial
stabilty of any organisation and ensures that there are adequate reserves 1o support the College’s core
activities. The College reserves include E200,000 for a 3G pitch sink fund. As 2t the balance sheet date, the
income and expendilure resenve slands at £4,052 000. For the second year the Local Government Pensglon

Schame provision is in surplus position £4.6m [(2023: £3.7m surplus) with an asset cap applied ,

It is the Corporation's intention to increase resenves over the life of the new siralegic plan through the
generation of annual operating surpluses for the purposes of re-investing in College resources

On the basis of the financial recovery plan delivering growth, a significant apprenticeship contract, improving
financial health performance and the support of the DIE warking capital loan and imgroving cash resenves the
Corporation considers that accounting basis of Going Concern is appropriate for the foresasable fulure,

Dwring the accounting pericd 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024, the College paid 30% (2023:62%) of its invoices
within 30 days, average days to pay 81 (2023 average 35 days), against the Treasury target of 5%, The
College incurred no inferest charges in respect of late payment this period,

Awvailabbe cash reserves (cash plus investments, less bank loan and restricted funds ) stand at £0.5m at the

balance sheet date (2022-23: £1.8m). Limited investment was made in year ower grant funded invesiment.
The college campus is in excellent condition following several years of iwvestment and development in

technical areas.

Where available, invesimenis, cash reserves and borrowing are managed in accordance with the Treasury
Managemant Policy, designed to minimise financial risk in treasury management. The DIE loan is repayable
by July 2027, the College will remain in financial intervention until the loan is repaid. The loan can be repaid

earfier if finencial recovery and funds allow.

The staffing establishment increased by 2% after a 9% increase in the previous year. Of the 249 FTEs, 57%
are delivery staff and a further 18% are direclly student facing.

Future Key Developments
Future developments are focused on financial recovery and the upcoming SPA process.

The Sellafield apprenticeship contract is operational from September 2024 and will support ow financial
recovery whilst delivering on our key objectives. The contract delivers on enginearing standards at level 2.3

and 6.
Faollowing extensive curmculum development on Higher Education qualifications, newly Open University

validated qualifications will be delivered from September 2024, A HE digital modular offer is also launched and
expecied io be popular. New degrees will be validated with the University of Cumbria in autumn 2024

The T-Level affer will be enhanced for 2025/26 with additional engineering routes. Growth in High Needs
provision is expected, in response (o the refreshed offer. Increasing NEET and unemployed offers, often
supported by the County Council, continue 1o grow,



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Qur clffer is extending via the National College for Nuclear and construction departments to meet the skills
needs ko meat the kow carbon economy skills nesds

Government policy for economic growth has a strong skills focus with further education recognised as a key
part of the solution to economic recovery with:

»  Investmient in delivery of Local Skilts Investment Plans

= A continued focus on apprenticeships and lfe-fong learing, with additional fiexbiliies expected,
* On-going investment in the FE estate to meet modem curriculum needs.

The college estate is recognised on the balance sheel at cost and current operating condilions are not
considered lo result in an impairment 1o the value of assets,

The Corporation has reviewed the financial position and considers that the College has adequate resources to
conbnue in oparational excellence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concem basis in prepasing the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Coliege continues to work to strengthen the internal control environment, (including financial and
operational risk management) which is designed to protect the College’s assets, reputation and financial
sustainability,. The College maintains a risk register, which is reviewed, termly to assess risks and the
effactiveness of mitigating actions.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Callege, not all the factors are
within the College’s control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

1. Failure lo maintain the financial viability of the College

2022123 delivered substantial operating loss despite significant growth in line with the financial strategy. This
continued into 202324, leading lo the need to secure a DFE working capstal loan in June 2024. The College

strategy has moved o one of consolidated growth whilst we rebase costs to sector norms agains! income
lewels with a singhe improvement plan in place.

The college financial recovery plan aims fo secure sustainable growth by

= Continuing fo meet employer's skills nesds by develop our apgrenticeship offer, particularly in
Engineering and Construction,

= Deliver the Sellafield Apprenticeship contract from 2024/25:

» Embedding the Apprenticeship Academy recruilment service for employers;

= Continued growth in 18-19 confract with the development of the T-Leved offer for 2023/24 and beyond:

» Raview of the adult re-skilling offer and delivery plan;

+ Development of the Higher Education offer with the Open University;

+ Delivery of HE modular option;

* increasing curriculum innovation and efficiency, including review of dalivery models and partnership
wWorking;

+ Dedicaled apprentice progress and compliance cosches o support efficlent and effective
apprenticeship delvery;

* Improvements to college systems and reporting to suppor increased accountability for financial
performance across the organisation;

*  Increasing devolvernent of financial responsibility and commercisl awarenass,

« Reduction in rented property.

These measures will support the cofiege to return 19 Good and sustsinable financlal health



STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

2 Governmeant funding

The Caollege has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the further education secior
funding bodies and OFS. In 2023724, B5% (2022723 86%) of the College's revenue was ullimately public funded.
High infiation rates and increases in employment costs have wiped ouf any recent increases in funding rabes

The risk is mitigated in & number of ways:

the College is seeking Io increase full cost provision which is not dependent on government funding;
maximising fee income deliverning quality education and fraining needed by employers and for sfudents to
progress info employment;

development of the STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics) provision to support
growth in this area, both dassroom based and apprenticeship, Ensuring that progression roules exdst to
higher lechnical skills and local skills priodilies,

seeking continued growth in apprenficeship provision where the business case supports this growth;

axtending geographical reach;

Mational College for Muclear development to meet sector skills requirements;

focus and investment in developing and malntaining relationships with key stakeholder bodies in our
locality and nationally in the nuclear sector;

devefoprment of the Civl Engineering Training facility;

partnership and coliaboration as evidenced by MCMN, SDF, LSIP and Cumbria FE Colliege collaboration:
improving the efficiency and effectiveness of delivery models;

improve financial accountability across the College:

aiming to manage casts within funding constraints;

process improvement activity
3 Apprenticeship Defivery

Apprenticeships now form almast 40% of College provision, ahead of sector norms. Apprenticeships are a key
vahicle fo meet local skills and deliver the College growth strategy, however, create funding compiance risks
dua to the rigour of the compliance regime which impacts on all stakeholders in the apprenficeship market.

The weighting of funding to completion adds to the financial and qualify risk,

This risk Is mitigated by:-

= Vigilance in monitoring funding updates and employer incentives;
= Whola process and Syslems review,

» Commissioning of axternal support

o Staff tradning;

Ligison with OfE and ESFA staff,

Enhanced internal audit coverage and support,

Support for employars;

* Dedicated structure for on-boarding, progress monitoning and comgpliance.

4. Ofsted Inspection

Wihilst we have recenily achieved a Good Ofsted grade, we must embed our improvemnent actvity as part of
our continuous improvement and to @void the risk of a poor Ofsted inspection in the future, Our Beyond Good

agenda frames this impeowement activity and Is securing measurable improvements.
This risk is mitigated in a8 number of ways:

+ Agdapling of our Teaching, Learning and Assessment mathodology,
o Development of 8 Trauma informed approach to supporting Marmens 1o achieve,



STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Engagement in sector and Ofsted quality forums;

Support for part-ima Ofsted Inspector stafl member,

Internal and external quality assurance activity;

Selting of targels at upper guartile level lo drive further improvement,
Revision of our maths and English policy and strategy.

& Increasing compatition

The development of alternative provision based locally (University of Gumbria, privale providers, Energy Coast
UTC and Academy schools); in a lough operating envirenment for all represent a risk to the growth strategy of
the College.

This risk is being mitigated by

sewking growth in curriculum areas for which there is known increasing demand;
T-Level offer;

improving marketing, recruitment and admissions processes;

development of the Apprenticeship Academy;

exiending provision into the Carlisle area in response to employer demand;
increasing apprenticeship provision as a key priority;

jointly leading the National College for Nuciear:

securing Sellafield Lid apprenticeship contract

quality improvement activity to support demand;

collaborating where opportunities allow, including leading on collaborative bids;
reviewing the business delivery model, particularly in the light of a blended leaming model.

6 Impact of national policy on English and maths on future recruitment, student attainment levels and
OFSTED judgement

As a College supporting deprived students the condition of funding requirement to deliver English and maths
GCSEs 1o all 16-18 students whose prior attainment level is a 3 is a risk in terms of student recruitmant,
retention, engagement, achievement rates and thereby Ofsted grading. A large proportion of our learners join
us without achieving their maths and English at schoal, 56% of our learmers need a maths and English formal
qualfication, with 26% needing both, this compares favourably to 69% and 47% for general Further Educalion
Colleges nationally, Uirgant actions to further improve achievement rates in English and maths include:

» Consistenl use of new teaching and learning rescurces;

* A focus on changing mind-sets around maths and English;

» Engaging early with students and parents in English and maths, bullding on lessons learned in a
collaborative teaching and leaming project;

* Reviewing the maths and English policy and extending functonal skills,

= Adapting Springboard assessment period to support assessment and development of foundation
literacy and numeracy skills;

. lm::;fng emphasis on achievernent of all elements of the study programme including English and
ety

recruiting specialisi qualified maths and English tutors;

supporting tubors to be Awarding Body markers of GCSE papers;

providing additional support services to support student achlevement:

increasng focus on evidencing progress i learning,

focussing on maths and Enghsh at for weekly review points, reviewing attendanca and engagement.

STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

7. Staff recrusiment

Alongside FE sector funding challenges, the pay gap between FE and schools and industry has worsaned,
increasing the challenge of aliracting and refaining specialist vocational staff

7



The recru#ment of teaching staff fo some vocational areas, in particular STEM, continues to represent @ risk
ta the quality of provision, delivery of contracts and growth sirategy of the College. Government FE recruitment
drives and the introduction of targeted retention incentives provide some support in critical areas.

The rural and isolated location of the College requires us to ‘grow our own' teaching staff from industry meaning
support and development of our staffing establishment is critical o our succass.

This risk is baing mitigated by

reviewing siaff recruitment, pay policy and structures to provide greater flexibilfy and opportunities for

candidates with appropriate skills;

= gevelopment of the associate model to meet specialist skills requirements and increase flexibifity in
meeting employer needs;

¢ implamenting altermnative delivery mathods and options,

= Increasing focused staff development and 'growing your own',

« securing DIE suppori funds and targeted retention payments supporis attraction and retention of

indusiry spectalists;
= |ncreasing suppod for new teaching staff.

8. Maintain adequate funding of pension Eabilities

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) on the College's
balance sheet in line with the requirements of FRS 102, In line with most public secior pension schemes a
pension deficit usually exists for the College, though this was reversed In 2022723 with a surplus position
raparted, this surplus further increased in 2023724, as detailed in 15, The College has applied an asset ceiling
cap in reporting the pension surplus position. The College is not required bo contribute any addiional deficit
funding to the scheme. The pension scheme is managed for long-tarm raturn, and though the cument surplus
pogition is welcome, it is important to be aware that market condilions could reverse this position.

Application of the McCloud remedy Is now active and may result in additional pension llablities for some
members which are provided for within actuary estimates ufilised in these financial statements. The risk is
monitored by regular actuarial review and to some extent mitigated by ncreased pension confributions from
employees and employer in line with the maximum recommended from aciuarial assumplions and by an

agreed recovery plan with the Cumbria Pension Scheme.

On 19 August 2020 the colege TUPE'd cleaning staff into a newly formed college subsidiary a key driver for
this approach to these out-sourcing arrangamants baing management of pension costs, followed by Catering
staff on 1% July 2021. The subsidiary company provides a vehicle to offer further oppartunities io mitigate
pension fiability risks.

The Teachers” Pension Scheme is an unfunded scheme and as such the liability for that scheme is not reporied

on the balance sheet. Significant increases in Teachers Pension Scheme employer contribution rates are 1o
date supported by pension grant funding. Further increases are not assured 1o receive grant funding support.

8. Safeguarding and Prevent

The Board has a statutory duty to ensure the safeguarding of students. The Board has several statutory
responsibilities in respect of keeping leamers safe in co-operation with partneér organisations and to give due
regarding to the need to pravent people from being drawn mnlo berronism.

The Caollege has put in place cartain saleguards in recognition of this and included the matier an i1s risk register
so that it can be monitored regularly by the Corporation. Risks associated with these duties are being mitigated

by:
+ giving regular briefings fo Governors and sfaff,
= regular reviewing and updating College policy and procedures to reflect lalest good practice;

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES [contimusd)

= internal communication and promodion plan,



training for Governors and stalf,

training for siudent representatves;

including Safeguarding and Prevent in the tutorial programme for students:
onling monitoring activity.

10. Cyber Attack

In 2017, the College suffered a major Cyber-afiack. Cyber-attacks are significant and an-going and represent
a significant risk to business continuity. We remain vigilant and mitigate this risk by:

increasing resources focussed on digital capability and security;
staff training and awareness rasing;

efhanced insurance cover,

third party testing of security;

Securing and maintaining the Cyber Essentials Plus award.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

The College understands the importance of collsboration and partnership working and actively works with
many stakeholders, including:

students;

parents and guardians;

staff and represantative bodies;

ithe FE Commissionar,

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Chamber of Commerce and Local Authorities:

partners in the Mational College for Nuckear - Sellafieid Lid, University of Cumbria, Bridgewater and
Taunton Coliege, EOF Energy Ltd and University of Bristol,

iocal employers, in particular Sellafield Lid and the wider nuclear supply seclor, NHS Trusts and
Gumberand County Council,

Cumbria FE Ingtitutions, Lancaster and Morecambe College, Secondary Western Heads, primary
schoals;

Inspira;

Open University, University of Cumbria and UCLAMN;

professional bodies,

CAREBON REPORTING

The intensity measurement recommended for the sector is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per

staff member. The intensity measurement for Lakes College in 2022/23 is 1.5 tonnes CO2e per mamber of
staff (2021722 2 2 tonnes).

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency:

We have replaced the boilers n the main college bullding with more energy efficient ones and
continue to upgrade lighting across college with LED lighting on a roling basis;

Established a sustainability group to support the move its net zero;

Urafted a decarbonization plan to inform carbon reduce developments and investmants;

Miced recycling bins. are in place and integrated across all classrooms. large offices and the LRC.
Promaticn of recycling across college conbinues:

Secured environmantal managemeant system 150 14001 accreditation in 2022
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Gender Pay Gap

Category As at March 2024 As at March 2023
Median Gender Pay Gap | 1B.7% in favour of men 20% in favour of men

Mean Gender Pay Gap | 10.2% in favour of men 6% in favour of men
The % proportian of men and women in each pay quariile {movement+/-%) i as follows:

Cuartila o Women % Men

Lower 71% (75%) 20% (25%)
Lower Middie B4% (B7%) 35% (33%)
Upper Middla 47% (55%) 53% (45%)
Upper 49% (56%) 51% [44%)

The Gender pay Gap has reduced as pay rates at the lower end of the pay scale have increased above the
average, we have more females in the lower pay bands. We continue to work lowards reducing the gender

pay gap.
Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union [Facilily Time Publication Requiremnent) Regulations 2017 require the College io publish
information on facility time arrangements for trade unlon afficlals at the College, comparative in brackets.

Number of Employees over relevant Period FTE Employee Numbers

01} 0 (0}
[ Percentage of Time Number of Employees

0% )

1-50% 0[0)

51-09% {=]

10 -1

Total cost of facility time D{ED)

Total Pay Bill £11,018,080 (£10.538,131 }

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 09%{0%)

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a % of 0%(0%%)

total paid facility time

Distlosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
thera is no relevant awdit information of which the College’s audiors ang wnaware; and each member has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken 1o be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that

the College’s auditors are aware of that information.
Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 5th December 2024 and signed on its behalf by

—
Mige! Holliday "\‘!: :S-Hé{/ B

Chadr
6th December 2024

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The following siatement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the Collage to
obiain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure, This statement covers the pericd fram 19
August 2023 bo 371 July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.



STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons

Lakes College is commilied io ensuring equality of opportunity for all who leam and work here, We respect
and value positive diferences in race, faith, gender, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
malernity, abdity, class and age. We sitrive vigorously to remove condiions which place people at a
dizadvantage and we activedy combat bigatry by the college communily.

The Coliege’s Single Equality Policy is monitored on an on-going basis and published on the College’s internet
site and the College publishes an Annual Equality report.  Equality impact assessments are undertaken on
policies and procedures.

DISABILITY STATEMENT

The College considers all applications for employment from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aplitludes
of the individuals concerned, The College is a "Positive about Disabled” employer and has committed to the
principles and objectives of the standard. Where an existing employea bacomes disabled, every effort is made
Iz ensure that employment with the College conlinues. The College’s policy is o provide training, career
development and opportunities for promotion, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other
employees. The College has secured the TUC Health and \Well-being standard, at bronze, demonsirating our
commitment to the health and well-being of our staff.

The College seeks to achieve the objectves sel down in the Equality Act 2010,

a.  As part of its accommodation strategy the College annually monilors and responds, as appropriate, o
access requirernents. Experts in this field conducted a full access audit in June 2007 and the results of
this formed the basis of capéal funding projects aimed at improving access, Access assessments and
work continue a5 we improve our campus.

b. The College provides information, advice, and arranges support where necessary for students and sialf
with disabilities. Students are supported in their iransition lo Callege.

c. Specialist equipment is available for use by studants and a range of assistive technology is avaitable in
the learning centre. This has been well received and ts weall utiligad.

d. The admissions policy for all students ensures no students are discriminated against. Appeals agains! a
decision not to offer a place are dealt with under the complaints policy,

e. The College has made a significant investment in the appointment of specialist lecturers to suppor
students with leaming difficulties andlor disabilly. There are a number of sludent support assistants
including specialists who can provide a vanely of learning. There is a conbinuing programme of staff
development b ensure the provision of an appropriate specialist support for students who have learning

f. The College actively works in partnership with organisations and groups in West Cumbria and beyond to
help develop access to learning.

g. Specialist programmes are described in College prospectuses, and achievement and destinations are
recorded and published in the standard College format. Review of achievement gaps feature in the self-
assessment and continuous improvement process

h.  Counselling and welfare services are available for all students.

i.  Equality, disability and impact measure targets are set and monitored across the curriculum with review
at corparation level,



The College endeavours o conduct its business:

. in accondance with the seven principles identified by the Commities on Slandards in Public Life
(saiessness; ntegrity, objectivity; accountabillity, openness; honesty and leadership);

. in accordance with the guidance to Colleges, in the Association of Colleges "Code of Good
Governance for English Colleges”

The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and privale funds, it has a paricular
duty to obsarda the highest standards of conporate govemance at all times. The Board first adopted the (AoC)
Code of Good Govemnance for English Colleges on 18 July 2015, adopting & subsequent version on 30™
September 2021. The Governing Body has continued to use this code in 2023-24, In the opinion of the

Governing Body, the College has sought to comply with the Code as validated by the Exlernal review of
Governance which look place from February- May 2023, On 21 March 2024, the Board adopled the revised

(AoC) Code of Governance 2024 for implemantation from 19 August 2024,

The College is an exempt charty within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, whao

are charity frustees, confirm that they have had due regand for the Charity Commission’s guidance on public

benefit. and paricularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education, and that the
ial statements,

required stalements appear elsewhere in these financial

The Corporation

Members of the Conporation, who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature
of this report are listed at pages 54-55. This table also includes committea membership and attendance

records.

It is the Corporalion’s responsibility 1o bring independent judgement 1o bear on issues of sirategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct

The Caorporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the
college together with other information such as pedormance against targets, proposed capital expendifure,
quality matbers and personnel-related mallers such as health and safety and environmental issues. The
Corporation meets (3l least) eight imes a yvear. Formal agendas, papers and reports ang suppied o Governors

in a timely manner prior o board meetings. Briefings are provided on an ad hoc basis.

All governors are abile to take independant profassional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College’s
expense and have access to the Clerk 1o the Corporation, who is responsible to the Board fof @énsuring that all
applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the
Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whole,

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executiva alement and no Individual or group dominates
its decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of ils non-execulive members is
independent of management and free from any business or other relationship, which could materilly interfere
with the exercise of their ndependent judgement. There is clear division of responsibility in that the roles of
the Chair and Accounting Officer are separale.

Tive Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interesis of the govemoss. The

register is available for inspection at the address below. Governaors have signed up to the Eversheds'
(professional advisors) Code of Conduct and have approved a conflict of interest policy.

The standing orders of the Corporation, which sets out terms of reference, schemes of delegation and rules
for the conduct of business, are published on the websita, as are the Annual Report and Financial Statements
of the Corporation for the previous six years, and the complaints and whistle-blowing policies, which are kept

under ragular review.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL (CONTD)

The Corporation is supported by a number of advisory working groups and committees. Each has a terms of
reference, which have been approved by the Corporation. These are the Finance and Carporata Working
Group. the Quality Working Group; the Search and Governance Committee; the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. More recently, the Corparation has approved a more informal monitoring group of

governors (Financial Recovery Group) focusing on financial health between scheduled meetings.

The Corporation monitors the risk register on at least a termly basis [see Principal Risk and Uncertainties) and
the Audit Commitiee is responsible for an annual review of the register. The risk register and managarment
processes have been audited in the past two years and received substanlial assurance. However, risk
management continues to be kept under review 1o ensure that processes are as robust as possible. A Further
Education Seif-Assessment report and a Higher Education Self-assessment report, which considers
performance in-depth, is approved by the Corporation on an annual basis and improvement plans are
manitored in-year.

The Corporation reviews financial regulations on an annual basis, which, together with approved policies in

respect of bribery, anti-corruption, gifts and hospitality and fraud, are audited on an annual basis through the
regularity audit

The Corporation approves an annual internal audit plan (on the recommendation of the Audit Committes),
informed by the risk register, sirategic and operational development and the agreed audit sirategy, with the
Audit Committee providing robust seruting of the ensuing reports.

The Audit Committea receives an Annual Report from the Internal Auditor, which is taken inlo consideration
when forming its own recommendations to the Corporation discussed in more detail under the ‘intarnal contral
heading of this statement below

Full minutes of all meetings, excepl those deemed to ba confidential by the Carporation under standing crder
47, are available on the College’s website or from the Clerk to the Corporation st

Lakes College West Cumbria, Hallwood Road, Lillyhall Business Park, Workington, CA14 4JN

Fredom of Information requests may be addressed to the Deputy Principal at the address above, under the
Access to Information Policy, which is also published on the websile,

These were no expenses paid to Govemors in 202324,
Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appoiniments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole.
The Corporation has a Search Commitiee, consisting of five mambers of the Corparation, which is respansible
for the seleclion and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The Corparation is
responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. Members of the Corporation are
appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years. New appointments are made for 1 year in the first
instance folfowed by a 3-year term of office by mutual agreement.

Corporation Performance

The College has camied out a self-assessment process in 2023-24 based on performance. This has been
brought to the Corporation for Board consideration. The Board has agreed a recommendation that there will
nol be a formal grading applied, but that strengths and areas for improvement will be well documented and
monitored, It is nobed for the record that Ofsted grading in 2024 is Good.

The Board has carried out a self-assessment of Board performance for the year ended 31July 2024 and has
gocumented strengths and areas for improvement using the AoC recommended template, which forms the
basis for their own action plan in 2024-25 which is agreed by the Board and monitored by the Search and

Governance Committes. The saelf-assessment has been shared with the FE Commissioner leam
STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL [COMNTD)

The Board continues to place reliance on their external review of Governance, carried out from February 2023-
May 2023 by Shirey Collier MBE, a former National Leader of Governance with the FE Commissioner's office

|



and experienced board reviewer, whose approach is aligned with the Charered Governance Institute of the
UK and freland, which concluded that

®.....gowernance is well managed and has & benaficial impact on Lakes Caollege. In tarms of nsk oversight and
managemant, the Board provides the college with one of its lines of defence. The curent approach should
give assurance to stakeholders that the college is managing its assels prudently and putting the student

axperience al the heart of its deliberations.”
A summary of her findings and an action plan can be found on the College's website.

The Governing Body demonsirates a commitment fo self-development with Governors undertaking some farm
of training throughout the yvear. This has included induction, safeguarding and prevent, finance training,
sirategic sessions; and networking evants. The Audit Committes has undertaken role-specific risk Iraining
within the past 16 months. The Chair has participated in Aol regional chairs' sessions. All Governors cominue

to be asked to undertake the ETF foundation online fraining,

The Clerk, who holds an ICSA Cerificate {level 5) in FE Governance, also participated in regional AoC
conferences, whare current issues are discussed and shared. This has included in the recent bwo years a

number of DIEMAGC-led wabinars (and self-development) in respect of the reclassification of FE Colleges as
public secior and the implications thereof,

Under the Code of Gopd Governance for English Colleges, adopted by the Corporation, thene is a reguirement
to comply or explain performance and this seclion provides an overview of performance for the past yaar.

With raspect io the external review of governance and the most recent Ofsted report {2024), Governance
continues to be favourably received.

*Governors provide strong support and challenge to leaders and clearly understand and support the college’s
sirategic plan. They clearly articulate changes ta the curriculum in recent years and their roles in the rationale
for these changes, for example, the benefits of a diverse apprenticeship offer for young people from
desadvantaged areas thal the college serves, where full-me education may nod be viable financially,” Ofsted

2024,

The Board has continued to act decisively, with honesty and integrity, o challenges it has faced in-year
(documented elsewhers in respect of financial support) and has shown a willingness to reflect and review

practice moving forward.

Govemors have a good understanding of the College, its place in the community and are responsive to national
and local policy initiatives, as demonstrated by a willingriess to engage in

the Mational College for Nuclear, of which it is one of two founding members;

to work with the Chamber of Commerce in delhvering the local skills agenda, in collaboration with other
gkifls providers,

T-Lewel provision;

A governor-led review of how the College meets local need

The Caorparation keeps all key poficies and proceduras under regular review and recelves the minutes of all of
its supporting committees and working groups. The Corporation &lso monitors complaints and compliments,
the surveys of key stakeholders, including students, their parents and employers. In addition, # regularly
receives updates in respect of sirategy, curriculum and finance, national and local policy developments, and
reviews KPIs al each meeting. Performance in respect of Safeguarding and Prevend, Health and Safety,

Equality and Diversity are reporied annually as a minimum.

Minutes of the Corporafion demonsirate the breadth of monitoring and challenge undertaken by the Governing
Body; Govemnors bring a very strong skills set to the work of the Corporation, with expertise in all requisite
areas and high expactations of senior staff,



STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTDY)

In 2023/24, Gevernors have achieved an overall attendance rate of B2% (2022-23; £2%), above target of B0%
&and in line with the sector average. The Board continues to consider the diversity of iis membership; in 2023724,
gender balance stood for the majarily of the year at 56% female and 44% male.

A key challenge for the College is that it sits in a large, rural, sparsely populated area (pop 163,200), with a
dominance of one particular sector - nuckear engineering — which attracts a large transient workforce. Add o
which, as confirmed by the latest Census of 2021, the "White/British® profile of the area Is in the §7 percentile.
Both have an impact on the diversity of polential candidates, bearing in mind the predominantly white
population, & commanality of skills, experience and outlook of those employed by the nuclear sector and the
challenges of a sparsely populated ares

Ghven this situation, and 2 board membership of 18 which affords some flexibility, Governors feel that, provided
the Board is subject to regular refresh, they resarve the right to re-appoint for longer than best practice advice,
wheve there |s a demonsirable need andior a need for continuity, in recognition of the limitations of the lecal
area. Three new indapendant members joined the Board in 2023-24 with three further governors due bo join in
2024-25, assisted by a recruiiment agency working with the DfE. In filling ils vacancies, the Search and
Govemance Commettes (and the Board) has due regard fo the overall skills mix of the Board,

The Board will continue o consider matters of equality and diversily in their appointment process, but their
appointment will be on the basis of the skills needs of the Board at the time of vacances.

Committees
Quality Working Group

The Quality Imgrevement Working Group comprised five members in 2023-24 and operates in accordance
with wrilten terms of referance approved by the Corporation. They had three formal meetings in 2023-24,
focusing on improvernent plans.

Search and Governance Commitles

The Search and Governance Commiltee comprised five members of the Corpocation in 202324, The
Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. The
Committee met 3 imes in 2023-24. Generally, the Commitiee provides a forum for reporting governance
developments, 10 discuss governor vacancies and appointments and to carry out an annual review of
Govemance arangements. In has been approved that this cormmittes will provide a focus for an ‘indepandent
view' of governance, akin to the rale discussed in the Higher Education Code of Good Governance.

Remuneration and the Remuneration Committes

The Corporation has adopted the AoC Remuneration Code and the way In which the salaries of senior
postholders, which includas the Accounting Officer, are set is authined in a statement available on the web site.

Salaries have traditionally been sel using benchmark material from the Association of Colleges at a scale
which took account of performance and was reviewed by the Remuneration Commities on an annual basis. It
is noted for the record that affactive from 1 August 2014, that all Senior Postholders, and the Clerk, voluntesred
to receive the same pay rise as all staff (usually aligned to the AaC pay award recommendation),

Fallowing a review of salaries by an external consultant in 2022-23, il was resolved that senior staff will receive
the same uplift as staff until the next such independent review in a further B years (unless the Remuneration
Committes feal that they should recommend an earlier review based on their monitoring of the AoC
benchmarking material). Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2024 are set out in note & Io the
financial Statements. noting that the pay ratio of the Principal to the staff median stands at 1:3.82.

In 20:23-24, there were four members of the Remunaration Committes. Tha Committese meets at least annually
o lake an overview of performance and the terms and conditions of the Senior Postholders and the Clerk,
Performance reviews of the Principal and the Clerk are carried out at least annually and reported to the Board.
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Finance and Corporate Working Group

The Finance and Corporate Working Group comprised 5 members in 2023-24 and operates in accordance
with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation. The Working Group met an four occasions in
2023-24, one of which considered the self-assessment of somea business support unids. The warking group
has been set up to monitor growth plans, business development and efficiency and effectiveness as an
advisory group fo the Corporation, and has also considerad the Learner Journey including the Careers

Strategy. In 2024-25, the careers responsibility will move o a Link Governar

Financial Recovery Group

A bess hnﬂ;lgﬂq:{nﬂnulfmhﬁappmwdhylhammuﬂnn}h&sha&n astablished a3 & sub-sel of the
Finance and Corporate working group, incorporaling additional financial expertise, to provide bebaean-
meating monitorng of ingncial performance. This mests at least termily where no other meeting of the Board
or Finance and Corporate Working Group Is scheduled. This group has no decision-making powers,

Audit Committes

The Audit Committes comprised six members of the Corporation (excluding the Principal and the Chair of
Corporation) in 2023-24. The Commiliee operates in accordance with written terms of reference in line with
the Post 16 Audit Code practice and approved by the Corporation. The membership comprised four
independent, one staff and a co-opted member, With Corporation’s approval, the Audit Committee did
previously take the decision to retain a staff Governor on the committes, valuing the insight they bring to

discussions {noting that any conflict of interest would be declared and, where appropriate, the staff governar
would withdraw). In 2024-25 this will change given differences to the skills' sef of the membership (which now
includes a former member of staff) and the staff governor will be deployed on ancther Commitiee.

The Audit Commitiea met five times in 2023-24 with attendance of B0% al one meeting; 83% at three meetings
and BT% at one meeling. Attendance was as follows:

Mr Robert Milburn [Chair) 2 of 5 meestings attendad

Mz Elaine Clinton § of § mestings attendad

Mz Denise Rallo 4 of 5 mestings attendad

Mrs Marma Boyes (co-opbed) 5 of 5 meetings attended

Mr Lea Todd 3 of & meetings attended

Ms Valerie Pallister 4 of 4 meetings atiended (joined November 2023)

The Audit Committee meets on at least a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College's
internal, regularity and financial siaternents auditors, who have access to the Committee for independeant
discussicn without the presence of College The Committes also receives and considers reports

management.
from the main funding bodies as they alfect the College’s business.
The College’s internal auditors monifor the systems of infernal control, risk management controds and
nce processes in accordance with the agreed audit plan and repart their findings io management and
the Audit Committea.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
undertakes perodic follow up reviews o ensure such recommendations have been implemented. Internal

Audit was able o confirm that 100 % of all recommendations had been implemeanted in 2023-24.

The Audit Commities recommends the annual awdit plan to the Corporation, authors an annual report o the
Corporation on audit wiark, and scrutinises and recommends the financial statements to the Corporation Board.

The Committes also advises the Corporation on the appointment of intemnal, regularity and financial statements
auditors and thelr remuneration for both audit and non-audit work and keeps kay policies and procedures
under review, such as the risk and whistlie-blowing policies, fraud and bribary and anti-corruption and financial

regulations.
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Internal Control

The purpose of the systenm of internal confral

The system of intemnal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to
the achievernant of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelinood of those risks being
reaised and the impact should they be realised, and Io manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of nternal control has been in place at Lakes College for the year ended 31 July 2024 and up o
the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Scope of responsibitity

The Caorporation is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Howaver, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achiave business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absoluta assurance against material
misstatemeant or loss,

The Corporation has delegaled to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, the day-io-day responsibility for
maintaining & scund system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College's policies, aims
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are personally responsibla, in
accordance with the responsibilities assignad to them in the Funding Agreement between Lakes College West
Cumnbria and the funding bodies. The Principal is also responsible far reperting to the Corporation ary matesial
weaknassas or breakdown in infemal condrol,

The risk framework supports the achievement of the College's policies, aims and cbjectives; business,
operabanal and compliance risks are covered in addifion to financial risks.

Capacity to handle rigk

The Corposation has reviewed the key risks 1o which the College is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance confrols that have been implemented o mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's
significant risks which has been in place for the year ending 21 July 2024 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts. This process is regulary reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and controd framewark

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procadures including tha sagragation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particutar, it
includes:

* comprenensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the
Govemning body;

= regular reviews by the Governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasts;

= sefting largets to measure financial and other performance; including achievemnent rates;

= regular review of the risk register, with mitigating actions, according to a risk appetite approved by the
Audit Committes;

= regular review of the Audit Committes minules by the Corporation, and consideration of the Annual Report
of the Audit Committee giving its opinion of the system of intemal control following review;

* sefting targats to measure financial, business and other performance, including success rates;

= regular review of the financial regulations, which sets out capital investment control guidelines;

» clearly defined capital investment control guidesines;

» the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Lakes College has an internal awdit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit servica
is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the College s exposed, and annual internal audit plans are
shapad by this analysis,
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The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are approved by the Corporation on the recommendation of
the Audit Commitbes. Al minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit provides the governing body with a

report on internal audit activily in the College. The report includes the College's system of sk management,
conirols and governance processes,

Risks faced by the Corporation

The Corporabion identifies the rsks (and opportunities) that it faces by keeping up-to-date with developments
in national policy and local poficy and funding developments; by strong stakeholder engagerent providing a

good knowladge of the local market and its fluctuations; through maonitaring of financial and curriculum
performance, being able to identify areas of concern (or growth) to maintain overall performance and satisfy

demand. It knows the business well and can ientify risks to s sitrategic objectives from a positon of
knowladge.

Having identified an individual risk, it is rag rated according to an approved risk malrix (and on the basis of risk
appetite). It is then analysed using the Bow-Tie method of risk analysis, which considers, on the one hand, the
causes and preventative measures and, on the other hand, the consequences and mitigating confrols. This
method of risk analysis originates in high-risk environments and was introduced to the Corporation by a
Gowvernor in the nuclear industry. This form of risk register allows for the identification of a diverse range of
risks and not just Ainancial risks.

The risk register is considered by the Corporation on a termly basis and reviewed by the Audit Commities on
an annual basis. In 2023-24. The Audit Committes has conskderad 1-2 risks in more detail at each of its
meetings.

The risk register is reflected in the Internal audit plan and the overall process is embedded in the annual cycle
of business,

Confrod Weaknesses [daibilied

*Az delafled In last year's financial statements, the deficit in 2022-23 was greater than forecast The
Corporation did take swift action in pursuit of financial recovery coupled with robust moniloring, howewer, an
unexpected clawback in funding necessitated the requirement for a loan from the DFE and the subsequent
intervention by the Further Education Commissioner, with whom the Board is working closely. The College
has now secured a major conlract and it ks forecast that the College will return to good financal health (self-
moderated from an automatic outstanding grading) in the coming year (nating that to date, the Caollege has not

required to use the loan),

Of three high level audit recommendations, teo of which were focused on apprenticeships, these are being
addressed by a robust action plan, with progress closely monitored by the Audit Committee and there is
confidence that progress is being made,

An OfS data audit (for clarity this was not an audit of the ILR) has equally led to a robust action plan being put
in place following recommendations from the OFS audifior, with an action plan being monitored at audit
commities,

There have been no instances of frawd, Other scrutiny of internal contrads, through a rigerous audit process,
has nat found any other significant control weaknesses or failures other than those reported above.

Fesponsibilifies vnder Funding Agreemenis

The Department of Education, and the Education and Skills Funding Agency, infroduced new condrols for the
College on 28™ November 2022 on the day that the Office for National Statistics reclassified colleges as public
sactor organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA chief executive communicaled these changes to all
college accounting officers and a college financial handbook was introduced in 2024. The Coliege has
reviewed i policies, procedures and approvel processas in line with these new requirements to identfy and
handle any transactions for which DFE approval is requived,
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Statemean! from the Audd Commities

In its annual report, the Audit Commitiee has provided assurance to the Corperation in the following
statemant:

"Having considered reports by the Collage’s Internal and Financial Statements Auditors, and more
recently the aclion plan to recover financial health from requires improvement to good, as far as the
information tabled to the Committee can allow a judgment to be reached, the Audit Committee Is of
the opinion that the College’s systems have been managed o a reasonable standard

The Callege has consistently had a good track record in the implementation of audit recommendatians.
This leads the Committee to form the opinion that the Corporation can rely upon the adequacy and
effectiveness of the College's internal conlrol systems, subject to the implementation of the
recommendabons referred o in the action plan and within the varicus repors ”

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committee in 2023/24 and up to the date of the approval
of the financial statements are:;

Internal Awdit Opindens 202324

Ref  Auwdit Tithe Owerall Assurance
1 Apprenticeships Strategy and Delivery Model Regsonable

2 Equality and Diversity Reasonable

3 IE-tH Puﬁrm::-mll::rﬂwnm Manapemant and Raasonabie

4. ESFA Mock Funding Audi Reasonable

5 Complianca with Audit Recommendalions Bubsianiial

& Apprenticeship Delivery Madel Compliance Regtarable

* Internal Audit: Annual Repan 2023-24 Reasonabie
Other Audits

Externmal Awdit 2023724

OFS review of aspects of highar
education student data 2022.21. No assurance offered

Mo issues arising

Regularity Audit 2023724 Ma issues arising

Review of effeclivenass

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the affectiveness of the systern of intemal
control. His review of the eMectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

the work of the internal auditors;

tha wark of the execulive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development and
mainienance of the internal contral framawork:

comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant for regularity
assurance, the appointed funding auditors (for colleges subject to funding audi) in their managemant
letters and other reporis.

The Accounting Officer has been adviged on the implications of the result of their review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control by the Audit Commiltes, which oversees the work of the intemal auditor and

b



other sources of assurance, and a plan [0 address weaknesses and ensure conlinuous improvement of the
sysiem & in place.

The senior management team receive reports sefting out key performance and risk indicators and considers
passible controd issues brought to their attention by early waming mechanisms, which are embedded within
the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The senior management team and the Audit
Committes also receive regular reports from internal audit, which include recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee's role in this area Is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal
control. The Corporation’s agenda includes a regular itlem for consideration of risk and control and receives
reports thereon from the senicr management team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis s on abtaining
the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. Al its December 2024 meeating, the
Corporation caried out an annual assessment for the vear ended 31 July 2024 by considering documentation
from the senlor management tearm and the internal audd and taking account of events since 31 July 2024,

Based on the advice from the Awdit Commitiee in its stalement, and advice from the Accounting Officer, the
Corporation is of the opinion that the College has an adeguate and effective framework for governance, risk

management and conbral, and has fulfilled its statutory i for “the effective and efficlent use of
resources, the solvency of the institulion, and the safequarding of their assels”,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 5th December 2024 and signed on its bahalf by:

NETs VR 77 a

Migel Holliday Chris Natiress
Chair PrincipallAccounting Officer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE:

As Accounting Officer | confirm that the Corporation has had due regard to the framework of authorities
governeng regularity, priority and compliance, and the requinements of the College’s accountability agreement,
funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA, the DIE and the OfS' terms and conditions of funding and
has considered its responsibility to nolify the ESFA and OfS of material irregulasity, impropriety and non-
compliance with those authorities and terms and conditions of funding.

| confirm on behalf of the Corporation that after due enquiry, and 1o the best of my knowledge, | am able to
identity any material, irragular or improper use of funds by the corporation, or material non-compliance with
ihe terms and conditions of funding, under the corporation’s atcouniability egreement, funding agreameants
and contracts with the ESFA, DFE and the ongoing conditions of registration and terms and conditions of
funding of the O45, or any other public funder. This includes the slements outlined in the “Dear Accounting
Officar” letter of 20 November 2022 and ESFA's bite-size guides.

| confirm that no instances of material Wregularily, impropristy or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the
Education and Skils Funding Agency and the Office for Students as appropriate.

E@ﬁmmu
PrincipalfAccounting Officer

Statement of the Chair of Governors

On behalf of the Corporatian, | confirm that the Accounting Officer has discussed their statement of
reqularity, propriety and compliance with the board and that | am content that i is materially accurate,

NS HS &)

Nige! Hedliday
Chair
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION

The members of the Corporalion are raquired fo present audited financial statements for each financial
yoar.

Whithin the lerms and conditions of the College's accountability agreement, funding agreements and
contracts with the ESFA, DIE, OfS and any other funding organisation, the Corporation is required to
prepare financial staternents, which give a frue and fair view of the financial performance and pogition of
the Conporation for the relevant pariod. Corporations must also prépare a strategic report which includes
an operating and financial review for the year. The bases for the preparation of the financial statements
and strategic report are the Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher
Education, ESFA's College Accounts Direction and the UK's Generally Accepled Accounting Practice.

In pregaring the financial statemants the Corporation is required bo:

= select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
depariures disciosed and explained in the financial stalements;

« assess whether the corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporiing assumptions,

qualifications or mitigating actions, as appropriate (which must be consistent with other disclosures

in the accounts and auditor's report); and

prepare financial stalements on the going concern basis unless it s inappropriate to assume that

the College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required io prepare a Stretegic Report, in accordance with paragraphs 3.23 and
3.27 of the FE and HE SORP, that describes what it is trying to do and and how it is going about i,
including information about the legal and adminisirative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reazcnable
accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and which enabile it to ensure that the financial
statamenis are prepared in accordance with relevant legisiaton Including the Further and Higher
Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011 and other relevant accounting standards, It is responsible for
taking steps that are reasonably open to it lo safeguard its assets, and to prevent and detect fraud and

olher irregulanties,

The Corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the College wabsite; the work canmied
out by the auditors doas nat involve consideration of ihesa matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial stalemants since they were
initially presented on the websie, Legisiation in the United Kingdom gowerning the pregasation and

dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes inbended by Pardiament and that the financial transactiona conform to the authorities that govern
them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency, DIE and OfS are used only in accordance with the accountability agrearmant, funding agreements
and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed from time fo time by the EFSA, OfS or any
other public funder, including that any transactions entered into by the Corporation are within the
delegated autharities set out in the 'Dear Accounting Officer’ letler of 29 November 2022 and ESFA's bite
size guides. Members of the Corporation must ensure thatl there are appropriate financial and
managerment controls in place o safeguard public and other funds and ensure they are wsed properly. In
addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective
management of the College’s resources and expenditure, so that the benafits that should be derived from
the application of public funds from the Education and Skills Funding Agency and other public bodies are

not put at risk.
Approved by order of the mambears of the Corporation an 5th December 2024 and signed on iis behalf

by
bl ki
Nigel Holliday

Chair
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE

We have audited the group financial statements of Lakes College for the year ended 31 July 2023 which
comprise the Consolidated and College Statement of financial activies mcorporating income and
expenditure account, the Consolidated and College Balance sheet, the Consolidated and College
Staternent of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law. United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
FRS 102 The Financia! Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Further
Education SORP 2019 and the College Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and
Skilts Funding Agency.

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body. Our audit work has bean undertaken so that we
might stale to the Corporation, as a body, those matters we ara required to state to them in an Auditor's
report and for no other purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility bo anyone other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit wark, for this repart, or for the
apinions we have formed.

In our opinéon the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the
state of the Group and College’s affairs as at 31 July 2024 and of the Group and College’s deficit
of income over expenditure for the year then ended; and

» have been property prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Genesally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further Education SORP 2015
and the College Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
respongibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
siatemeants in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reportng Council's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the
audit evidenca we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporation’s use of the going concemn
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial staterments is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to
conbnue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financlal statements are
authorised for [ssuwe.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Governors with respact to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this repart.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The Governors are responsible for the ather information. The ather information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Awditor's report thereon. Ouwr
opinion on the financial stalerments does not cover the information and, except to the extent othenwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibiity is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, I we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to delermine
whather thers s & malénal misstalement in the financial stetements or 8 matenial misstatemeant of the
other mformation. I, based on the waork we have performed, we conclude that these ks 3 material
migsiaternent of this other information, we are required to raport that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction

Ins o opinlon, in all materal respects:

+  funds from whatever source adminisiered by the college for specific purposes have been properly

apphed o those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legistation;
funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation [including Research

England), the Education and Skilts Funding Agency and Dapartment for Education have baen
applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and
the reguirements of the Office for Students’ accounts direction far the refevant year's financial

statements have been mat

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the College and their environment
obtained in the course of the audif, wa have not identified matenial misstalemenis in the Corporations
repart including the Strategic repart

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 168 Audit Code
of Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our
opinian:

# adequate accounting reconds hane nol been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not baen

received from branches not visited by us;
the College financial statements are nat in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

¢ all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received, o
the going concem basis of accounding and disclesure of material uncertainties is appropeiata,

Wa have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Office for Students;
accounts direction requires us to report to you if:

# the College's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, has been materially
misstaied.

# the College’s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been
matafially messtated,

RESPOMNSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION

As explained maore fully in the statement of responsibilies of the Members of the Corporation, the
Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view and for such Internal conirod as the Corporation membars debérmine is necessary
to anable the preparation of financial statements that are frea from matarial misstatement, whether dug

b fraud or ermor,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporaticn is responsible for assessing the college's abllity to
continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation edther inbend to liquidate the college or io caase
operabions, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our cbjectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errcr, and to issue an Auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misslatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material If, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of
these financlal statemants.

Ireguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design
procedures in Ene with our responsibiities, outlined above, to detect material misstaternents in respect of
wregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capabla of detecting irregularities,
inchuding fraud is detailed below.

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement In respect of irmeguiarities,
including fraud and nan-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

= the responsible individual ensured that the engagement team colleciively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations;

= we \denlified the laws and regulations applicable to the Corporation through discussions with
Governars and other managemant;

= we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through
making enguiries of managameant;

* identfied laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team
remained alert fo instances of non-compliance throughout the audit

We assessed the susceptibility of the Corporation’s financial stalements 1o material misstatement,
including ebtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud,
their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

= considering the intarnal controls in place to mitigale risks of frawd and non-compliance with laws
and reguiations,

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, wa:

* performed analytical procedures as a risk assessment tool to identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships; and

= tested journal entries to identify unwsual transactions: and

* tested the operating effectiveness of key controls over purchase cycles on a sample basis; and
reviewed the application of accounting policles including the application of capitalisation of tangible
assels, and timing of recognition of grant income; and

= Considered during our work on regulasity, propriety and compliance.

In response lo the risk of imegularties and non-compliance with laws and reguiations, we designed
procedures which included, but were not limited to:

= agreeing financial statement disciosures to underying supporting docurnentation; and
» enquiring of management as to actual and potential igation and claims.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF LAKES COLLEGE (CONTINUED)

A further description of our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements 1S lacated an the
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.fre.org_uk/auditorsresponsibiliies. The description fonms

part of our Auditor's repart.

(Ge e

Karen Rag FCCA (Senior Stalutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Armstrong Watson Audit Limited
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Carlisla

Date: Iﬁth December 2024



STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Staternent of Accounting Policies

The fellowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in
relation to the financial statements

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE S0ORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2022
to 2023 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 = "The Financial Reporting Standard apolicable in
the United Kingdom and Republic of Iretand® (FRS 102). The college is a public benefit entity and has therefore
applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accountng
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting palicies,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the use of previous valuations
as derived cost at transilion for certain non-current assels.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the college and its subsidiary, Lakes College Enterprises Lid, controlled
by the group. Control is achieved where the group has the power to govemn the financial and operating policies of the
enibity 50 as to obtain benefits from its activities. Under the purchase method of accounting, the results of the subsidiary
and assotiated undenakings acquired or dispesed of during the year are included in the consolidated income and

expenditure account from or up to the date on which control of the undertaking pesses. Intra-group sales and profits are
eliminated fully on consolidation.

Going Concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance are set out
in the Strategic Report There are inherent uncertainties affecting college future funding long term funding rates.
significant qualification reform, The financial position of the College, its cashfiow, liquidity and borrowings are degcribed
in the Financial Statemants and accompanying notes,

Two key issues create uncertainty and risk in considering going concern:
Local Government Pension Schams (LGPS) Liabity

In 201920 the LGPS liability moved the Caollege into a negative balance sheel position. Since then the llabdity has
decreased, returning the balance sheel into a positive £5.5m in 2021/22 and in 2022723 the actuarial assessment moved
to @ surplus position of £3.7m, this further increasing in 2023/24 to £4.6m.

No additional contributions are required for the MeCloud remedy or for additional deficit contributions. This schame is a
long-term liability, arising as the college must offer the LGPS (o staff who are not efigible as members of the Teachers’
Pension Schema, and would anly crystallise if the college were to leave the pension schems.

Further mitigating actions to manage the liability were taken with the estabéshment of a fuly owned subsidiary company,
Lakes College Enterprises Lid, as a vehicle ko limit the generation of additional kabiities where possible.

The governors have considered the contribution rates and the cashflow available to the college and can meet the

contnbutions as they are expected to fall due. Therefore, the LGPS liability is not considered a material risk io tha going
concem of the collage over the medium tesm.
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SETATEMENT OF PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES |continued)

Future Operations
Government education policy and qualification reform indicate that the college is well placed to meet government
pricrities in regard to technical education, skills development and employer engagement.

The collage has made a deficl in the year of £0.528m (2023 £2.05m) before the actuarial movement on the pension
schame, and a deficit of £0.805m (2023, deficit £0.1m) including the pensions movement with asset cefing applied as

detaded at note 15.
The college has net current assets of{ £0.007m) (2023 £0.02m) and positive reserves of £4.4m (2023 £5.4m).

WNobwithstanding the above the gowernors confirm the collage continues o ba a going concerm, without the pension asset
the college has assels of B4 4m (2023 £5.4m), the pension liabdity is payable by employver contributions over a long-term
duration and all confributions over the medivm term can be met from cash flows,

In addition, within curent labilfies there is E0.98m (2023 £0.9m) of deferred income capital grants which are not Kabilibes
falling due for payment but instead income yet to be refeased. Ramoving the defarred income there would ba net current
assets of £0.98m (2023 £0.9m) clearly demansirating the ability of the college to meet its Eabilities as they fall due.

In Spring 2024 with a chalienging working capital position and substantial in-year T-level funding clawback, the governors
requesied a £1.5m Department for Education working capital loan to support the College to meet its liabilities, with
repayment planned for July 2027. The College received this loan facilities in June 2024, which has bolstered working
capital reserves, particularly as we secured a substantial apprenticeship contract in September 2024 To dale the College
has not utilised this working capial facilty. Receipt of the loan facility placed the College info formal intervention with the
FE Commissioner and a Financlal Notice to Improve was issued in September 2024, FE Commissioner support is on-
going whist the College undertakes an FE Commissioner led Strategic Options Appraisal (SPA) which will suppart the
Coliege to test Its business case and consider alternative business models. The SPA is expected to reach a conclusion
in March 2025, Whilst in this process, the Corporation is commitbed to robusi monitoring of its Financial Recovery Plan
to ensure that actions are having the impact necessary to suppor fulure aspirations.

In July 2024 the College secured a sought after apprenticeship contract for a period of 28 maonths. Provision mobilised
in September 2024 with apprentice recruitment in line with the contract plans. The College had available cash reserves
of £2.3m as at 31 July 2024. The level of cash reserves and fiscal planning indicate the college has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foresecable future, and for this reason will continue to adopl the going concemn

basis in the praparation of its Financial Statements

Recognition of Income

Funding body recurrent grants are recognised in line with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend
on the paricular income stream involved. Any under or over achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and
reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is
normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body at the end of
Movember and with any funding audits. 16-18 leamer-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is
therefore not subject to contract adjustments, other than for T-Level under-delivery. Where part of a government grant
is deferred, the deferred elarnant is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due

within one year and creditors due after mone than ong year as appropriate,

The recuriant grant from Office for Students (OfS) represents the funding allocations atiributable to the current financial
year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Man-recurrent grants from the funding bodies o other bodies recelved in respect of the acquisition or construction of
fixed assets are treated as deferred income and recognised in income over the expecled useful e of the assef under
the accrual method permitted by FRS 102

Income from grants, contracts and other services rendered is included to the exdent the conditions of the funding have
been met or the extent of the completion of the contract or service concerned. Income received in advance of
performance-related conditions being met is recognised as daferrad income within creditors on the balance sheet and

released to income as conditions are met.
Income from tuition fees is recognised in the period for which it is receivable and includes all fees payable by students
ar thair Sponsors.
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
All incorma from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is eamed.
Agency Arrangements

The College acls a3 an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support related funds and bursaries recehved
from funding and olher bodies. Subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of
Comprehensive Income whare the College is exposed to minimal risk or anjoys minimal economic benef related to the
transaction. In this case payments received and disbursed would be shown separately, except for the 5% of the grant
received which is available to the College to cover administration costs relating to the grant. Any funds heid are within
creditor balances.

Post Retirement Benefits

Retirement banefits for most employees of the College are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Schems (TPS) and the
Local Gevernment Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are definad benefit schemes which are externally funded from the
state pengion scheme and contracted out of the second state pension,

Contributions to the TPS are charged bo the income and expenditure account 5o as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lves with the College in such & way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of
current and future pensionable payroll The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of
quinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the Coliege is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabdities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis.

The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each
year,

The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values, LGPS liabdities are measured uging the projected unit
method and discounted al the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to
the liakility, The increase in the present value of the liabdities of the scheme expected to arise from employee sanvice in
the period is charged o the operating surplus as pan of staff costs incurred, The expected return on the scheme's assels
and the increase during the pericd in the present value of the scheme's liabilities, arising from the passage of time, are
included in pension finance costs and recognisad in the statement of comprehensive income, Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in recognised gains and losses.

Shoert Term Employment Benefits

Short term emgloyment benefits such as salares and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service o the Caollege. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the adddional amount the Caollege expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiemeant.

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to former members of staff is paid by the College annually. An estimate
of the expected fulure cost of any enhancament to the engeing pension of a former members of staff is charged in full o
the College’s income and expenditure account in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge
is made o provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadshest provided by the funding bodies,

Non-Current Assets - Tangible Fixed Assets

a. Land and Buildings

Land and buildings inhefited from the Local Education Autherily are stated in the balance sheet at valuation on the basis
of deprecialed replacement costs at acquisition, which is treated as deemed cost under the transitional provisions of
FRS 102. Land and buildings acquired since incorporation are included in the balance sheat at cost.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic ife to the
insfitution of 50 years.

Whese land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants they are capitalised and depreciated s above. The
related grants are credited o a defermed income grant account and are released to the income and expenditure account
over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis
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STATEMENT OF FRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

consistent with the depreciation poficy. The defemed income is allocated between creditors due within one year and
those due after more than one year,

Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction of significant bulldings are nol capitalised as part of the
cost of those assels,

On adoplion of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and buildings as
deemed cost and not io adopt a policy of revaluations of these proparties i the fulure.

Assels under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct costs,
incurred to 31 July 2024, They are nol depreciated until they are brought into use. Any associated grants related to
these assels are not released until the asset is brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying
amouni of any fixed asset may nol be recoverable.

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and expenditure account
in the period it I3 incumed, unless i meets one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised and deprecialed on
the relevant basis;

market value of the fixed asset has subsequently improved;

asset capacily increases;
substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating costs,
significant extension of the assel's life beyond that conferred by repairs and malnienance,

b. Equipment
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item, unless this forms part of a larger project, is writlen off to the
income and expenditure account in the period of acquisition, Lower valuge mobile IT eguipment and associated
peripherals, which may individually cost under £1,000, are capitalised to allow appropriate fracking of use of the asset.
All other equipment s capllalised al cost. Equipment inherited from the Local Education Authority is included in the

balance shest at valuation less depreclation
All equipment is depreciated on a straighi-line basis, ower its useful ecanomic [fe as follows:

General Equipment 5 years
Computar Equipment; 3 (historic) and & years
33 Pilch Surface; 10 years
30 infrastructure: 30 years

¥here equipment i acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capifalised and depreciated in accordance with the
sbowve policy, with the related grant being credited 1o a deferred grant account and released to the income and
expenditure account over the expected useful economic ife of the refated equipment.

Leased Assots
Cogts in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The College does not have any assels acquired under finance leases.

Invastments

Fixed asset investments are carmed at historical cost less any provision for a permanent diminution in their value.
Current asset investments are inciudad in the balance sheet at the lower of their original cost and net realisable value,

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests sat out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore meets
the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.  Accordingly, the College is potentially exernpt
from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1952, to the extent that such income

or gains are applied exclusively to charnitable purposes.
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax (VAT), so that it can only recover a minor element of VAT
charged on its inputs. Irmecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of
tangibie fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature,

Since April 2017 the Apprenticeship bevy of 0.5% of payroll costs above £3m is payable. The College has the right to
use the levy to pay for apprenticeship iraining for up to 24 months. Where It is considered the levy can be utilised for
apprenticeship training it is classed as pre-paid and released as expenditure when utiliged or writhen aff after 24 manths.
Any 10% top up of the levy from Government funds will be recognised as income in line with the release of the
apprenticeship levy expense.

Liguid Resources

Cash and cash equivalents include sums on short-term deposits with recognised banks and building sociaties and
government securities. Al no time during this accounting paricd did cash reserved dip below 30 days and forecast
Indicate this remains the cash coming for the coming 12 months from the signing of these accounts.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probabie that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amaount of the abligation.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
in preparning these financial statements, managernent have made the foliowing judgements:

= determined whether leases entered inio by the College either as a lessor or lessea are operating or finance
leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis;

= determined whether there are indicators of impairment of the College's tangible assets. Factors taken into
consideralion in reaching such a decision include the economic viabilty and expected future financial
performance of tha asset and wheve it is a component of a karger cash-generating uni, the viability and
enpecied fulure performance of that unit

Other Key sources of estimation uncertainty
*  Tangible Fixed assels

Tangible fixed assels are depreciated over their useful lves taking into account residual values, where appropriate.
The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may wary depending on a number of
factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken
into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as fulure market conditions, the remaining life of the
assel and the projected disposal values.

= [ ocal Government Pansian Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined banefit liability depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost (income) for pensions inchude the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed In
note 16, will impact the carrying amount of the pension kability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects
results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensions Eability &t 31 July 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a
full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Far The Year Ended 31 July 2024

Nodes Foaa 2034 3 ek

Cooa £000 £nag 000
Funding body grants 1 14317 14,297 13,500 12,930
Education conlracts 2 TEE T8 112 712
Tuklon fees and chamges 3 584 584 L BT
Ocher operating incoma 4 845 1,153 G2 845
Inestmend income 5 ] 224 52 2
RS ICRuTi 16768 17.0E3 14997 18,254
Expanditure
St oosby ] 11,019 11,283 19,534 16, TEL
Ciher oparating axpanses | & 068 8, &2 5,173 5178
Dapreciation 10 1,180 1,162 1.8 1264
Inbermst and othar famnce cosis ] 20 20 &7 57
Total expenditiane 17,288 1TETT 17,050 17,304
SurplusdDeficit) batens athar gains and IDS5as {5250 (0 {2, 053] (2. 050y
(Loss) on disposal assais g - . - .
SurplusDalicit) before tax {528 ) (2053 (20500
Taxation = -
Surplus(Deficll) In the year (525} [434) 2,055 {2,080y
Actuarial gainiioss) in respedt of pension schemes: 1516 [ETE) [ZFs) 1,884 1,984
Tedal comprehensive income far the year {BOS] (7700 (G} (56}
Regraganbed by-

(=05} [Frdy {B5) 58]

Unresiricted cemprehensive income

The income and expenditure account is in respect of continuing aclivites. There were no operations
that were acquired or discontinued during the year.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COLLEGE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For The Year Ended 31 July 2034

- Incoma and G Pitch Sk Revaluation

! : : Notes  expenditure Account  Fumd Reserve Total
Group - —
(AL July s Ty ——————rr
I Release of rovaluation resanm 231} (231)
|
| Duficit from Incoms and [TTo) o
oupnduRe Bccount
|
| Transfers to designated reserves (25 25

AL July 203 o 4,054 200 146 4,440
Colloge
| At 319 July 2023 4 7 W
| Aelease of rovalustion reseree 2 )

Defieit froem income and (805 o
| expenditure ascount
| Transfers to designated reserves

(25} Fa
AL 3T July D034 4,082 200 144 4,308

The 3G pitch sink fund has been established, as required in the gram funding conditions, for replacerment of the 3G pitch

‘canpat’.
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 JULY 2024

Hon-cairrent assets
Tangibls fixed  asiels Ll 78,045 25,048 28,30 28,378

mhmm 11 - - - M

28,045 20, 0ad FRTAl 28,378

Totad non-clirnand asseis

Currant assots

Dabdars i3 1,608 1,580 2,208 2284
Cash at bank and in kand 2.218 3384 1,778 1784
oML ELEEY 1,829 3,024 396 400
Creditors: amsaunts faling dos wilhin ond yaar 13 (3,945 {3,892) 3,085 [4.013)
Met current assets 7l iz 41 b
Total assobs less current fabilities 28,038 20,080 Pk 28,4
Creditons amounts falling dus aMer mons Fian o yesr 14 (F3432) (23423 (E2TM) [EITad)
Dafined benefit obligations afier provisions i5 : - 5
Prowisions 18 (218 (218 [236) (235)
Total met assets 4,398 4,440 B.414 5441
Restricind rosorses

Designabed resane T 200 200 178 178
Unrestrictad résane

Ferakmiion fsacve a7 145 145 a7 37
Income ael expenditure accaunt 18 4,082 -0 4882  4pe9
TOTAL FUNDS posely M0 SRR W

The financial statements on pages 27 to 55 were approved by the Governing Body on 5th December 2024 and were
signed on its behalf by:

(\(.'5. Has _

Nigel Holliday Chris Nattress
Chalrman Principal
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Enced 31 July 2024

Cash flow from operating activities

SusplusDeficit) on continuing operatiors altor depreciation of assets at

valuation, excepSonal items and befone tax
Deprecabicn

Deferrad capital grants by income
[Ircrpasnl/decranis in debbons

Incresaaddecreasa) in credilors and provisians
Pension cost less conlribuliors payable

Nel cash inflowiioutliow) from cperating activilies

Cash flows from nvesting activities

Furchiss al iangisle fecad assels
Salet of argibls fiend assals
Defered capilal grants receved

Med cash inflowi{outflow) for capital expenditure snd financial imvestment

Camh flows from finencing activities

Ruturns en Irvestmeent and serdcing of finance
Ifveamant rcome

Interest recefved

OIE loan recahod in year

Inbereet paid

Mied cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

Increase’ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalonts im the year

EL

1,001

{1.085]

1,001

(94

Calfege  Grouwg
2023 2023
£00G £ope

(2053 (050
1,282 1,284
{887) {8&T}
(BT} {1,015

ES 124
33 33
{52) {52)

(2258} (2,289

Coltege  Group
202} 23
£00¢ £004
[ Bl e I e
3537 3537
175 (178

Colfegy  Gracp
23 2021
roag Eotd

83 )
52 52

College  Group
20D 20
£000 £000

(2,382) (z412)



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. FUNDING BODY GRANTS

ESFA Recurrent grant = adult

ESFA Recurrort Gramd - 186-18:

ESFA Rocurrent Grant - Apprenticeships
OFS Rocurrant Grant
Raleatos af gevarmmand capilsl granis
Bursary Funds

Othar Funds

- EDUCATION CONTRACTS

Lacal Educatian Autharity

PE B3

4712

BB EB

14,197

it BB

FR825 5 4 ﬁgaﬁg

12,920

:
EEH

07
£000

245
1,338

12920

a6

=18

i

Education conlract income repmadnts lee income received which s not directly from ESFA or 045, Dilser contracls includes

Multiply Income of E28,540 which is classified a5 a matricted grant,

3 TUITICN FEES AND CHARGES

Adult Education Fees
Appronticeship foes and contracts

Higher Education

Calfege
2024
£000

214
B4

242

]

214
B4

282

College Group

20237 Fiis ]

£ooa E00a
282 e
54 ES
0 320
&7

L1

Tuiticn fees funded by bursaries included within the sbove amounts are tuition fees funded by bursaries of £AT5 (1032 £47E)

k[



4.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Releases from non-govemment capltal grants {non ESFADFS)

Othar income generating activities
Cither incoma

INVESTMENT INCOME

FR5102 persion Bnanco income

Other intorost recaivable

EX)

Growp College
L] 24 2023
oo £000 £000
e vz bk
268 it 213
208 E15 =]
B4E 1,155 B42
Coifege  Group Caifege
2024 024 23
£000 000 i
20 204
3] 21 53
35 225 52

e

213
358



6. STAFF COSTS

The average number of persons (Including sendor post hoiders) employed by the College during the poriad,

axpragsed as full-tbne eqidvalents, was:

Gollage Group Cetlege Group
e 2024 2023 2023
Kumbors  Numbers Nombers  Numbaers
Restated
Teaching doparimants FTE 143 143 T42 142
Headcount 156 155 155 155
Teaching supper sanvioes FTE 48 b a1 41
Headoaunt 50 £3 3 53
Administration and central services FTE 45 45 45 45
Hoadoound L 4“4 s 52
Pramiass FTE i 16 7 18
Haadeound T P L} 24
Incame Gensraticn FTE T 7 & B
Headcounl -] 2 13 i
TOTAL FTE 48 L 244 285
Headoount 274 88 AT 99
Stafl costs for the above persans:
|
| 7 A A
£000 {20 fre] £000
| :mﬂ;;}umm (ncludéng Faculy Techmiclans and olher 7433 7.133 B.ATE B.4TE
| Teaching suppart services e e e i
Adminisiration and contral services 1872 1,672 1,451 1481 |
Prem o a28 245 A5
Income Generation Stadf 381 31 70 179
Apprenticeship Levy 23 5 23 b
| Persion Deficik Charge ; > y ; [
FRS 102 rotiremant bomeht changs {79 (r& 2T ZT8
: Restructuring casts - Contracbual . - F | 21
| MHon-conractual - . 2 a5
| Mavement in holiday pay accrual )] {50 5 76
i Ciher " - ' [
|
11,019 11,283 10,838 10,784
Wages and salaries 82233 B483 7,688 T 524
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Agency Cosks

Saocial security costs

| Other pensbon costs

FRS 102 retirement benefit charge

Employment costs for staff an parmanent conbracts
Employment cosia for slaff on short-erm and temporany conbrecis
FRS 102 reliremant benedit charge

wr
e
1614

11018

10 EE2

1,818

EL

3T

1,617

0
11,283

10,858

11,283

468
640
1416
176
10,628

1418
TG
107E4

8,580

76
L




T EMOLUMENTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key Management Persannel

Ky management perscnngl ane thase persens having authceily end resporasibility Tor planning directing and conlrolling the activities of
the Coliege and ave represenied by the College Executive Team which comprised the Priscipal, Depuly Principal and Assistant Princiaul

Caitegi GEroup Colfege  Group
2024 o4 2023 023

] EooR £000 00
- 273 7 274 74
BanalFa i kind 1 i ki 2
Pansian conlributions B [ix1 &1 i
Tatal 3ar a7 37 337

There wane o smounts due io key managemant parscanel paid fer compensalion for loss of cifce, (hal were waived in-jeni, nor sy salary
sacrifioe schemes in place, The abowe emoluments inclode amownts payable o the Princpal (Accouniing DMcer) [who & alsa Bha highast

pald officer) of:
Calfege Group Collige  Growg

024 024 i 2023

E00a Eood £000 £000

Salaries 121 121 118 118
Banafits in kind 1 1 1 1
Sub Total 1382 122 117 117
Pension contributicns 3 21 20 28
Total 1583 153 145 145

The sccounting alfice's enmimests rMeeesent muliples of median employes pay 2= follows:

Collepe Group CoMege  Group

2024 2004 2022 2023

£oo0 £ooe 000 E0oa

Principal and CEQ's basic salary as a muliple of the medisn of 8l sEalf 3.82 3482 4.12 4,12
ﬁ!@l:ﬁﬁﬂiﬂlnﬂmmulmﬁdhmdﬂ LE2 Jaz 4.2 4.2

Salary costs for all kay managemen] parsannel ane in line with salary banchmarks for Senior pay a8 published by the AQC, Pay awands
@ pakd gt the samse rate as (hose swarded 1o other employees. The pension conlributions in respect of the Principal and Senicr Post
holders are in nespect of employer’s contributions o the Teschers’ Pension Scheme and the Local Government Pengion Scheme and
are paid 3 the 3ame rabe 88 Tor olhar erployess.
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The numbss of key management parsonngl and othar sial wha recsived emoluments, exduding ian cordribuliang but ingluding
benefils in kind, in ta Sollowing ranges was: i

Colloge and Group

e 0 o™

As rostated

£60,001-£68,000 mm 4 2 um“ o 1
Salasies and Benelis on Kind
£65,001-£70,000 &7 1
Salacies and Benedts in Kind
E70,001 - E75,000 . : - 1]
Salaties and Benefis in Kind
ET5,001 - B89 600 fl-! 1 . -
Salaries and Banelts in Kind
E85,001-£90,000 J : 88 1
Salaries and Benofits In Kind
£90,001 -£95,000 & 1 80 1
Salaries and Bonefes in Kind
| E115,001-£120,000
Sutacies and Benefes in Kind a : 4 (
£120,001-£125,000
Salaries and Benefts in Kind 121 1
Al S ) ary 5 430 5|

HNobe. Ebere inchades the full year valug of cne marebaer of SE whio sharbed n-year,

The members of the cormporation thed e the Priccipal and e staff members did not recesve any payment Trem (he irsbitulion
oihar ihan the reimbursement of raed &nd subsisionce expenies incurfed in the course of their detigs. No othar laf recohned

emolumants ver £50,000
2024 2024 20T3 023
Compensation paid bo former key managoment persanngl £000 £000 £000 £0504

Compensation paid in the fammer post holides

Estimaied value of other contractual banefis, Wcluding peovisions for . 8
eSO

Tolal : -
Enraiments for kay personnal are sel based o ADE benchmark informad by incoen el and performance of the college. This
Danchmark, is also referenced o compantabe bl aquivakanls regional roles.

These sericr pay dischkiures meet the requirements of the ESFA and OFF acoonding bo dinections,

dl




OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES




BINTEREST PAYABLE

o S~ 1
£000  £0O0  £000  £000
FRS 103 persicn finance cost : 5 43 59
Enhanced pension provision 12 12 8 8
Interest Charges 8 8
20 20 &7 57
10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group
Freehold
Land &
o e £o00
Cost or Valustion
At 1 August 2023 1177 9,612 42,788
Additises 2 a3 1,008
Disposals .
AL 31 July 2024 33840 8,825 43,884
Depreciation
ALt |'|LI'F.E|: 203 T4 5.8583 14413
Charge for period 650 542 1,192
Rielased on Ravalation Reserve 71 . 231
Elrvinated on disposa's : : -
AL July 2024 B3z 7,524 16,836
Met Book Valus As AL 31 July 2024 25,637 2411 20,048
Mt Book Value As At 31 July 2023 2,748 & ke
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E:m_ al the historical cost amounts:

Aggregate depreciation based on cos

Nat book value based on cost




11. UNLISTED INVESTMENTS

This. redabes 1o th Colege™s Ervakmimsd i the: Mational College for Nuckear (NG) Tha Mafional College was approved by the:
Secretiy of ate in March 3017 commancsd activity in the scademic year 2017718

The Colege s a founding marmbar of NCMN alongside Bridgwater and Taunton Colieg, Sefafinld Lid, EDF Energy Lid, University
ef Cumbris and Undsersity of Bristed  Thir Saunding mambeds all share equal woling nghls. The NCIN i establehed bo guppan
the naficas gevelopment of skills 1o meet Muclear Indusiry reads

College  Grouwp  Caffege  Groop
2034 Farr ksl 2023
£000 £000 £000 008
Hational College for Nuclear - . . .
Total - . 5 -
iz DERTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
College  Growp  Coffege  Group
2024 2004 2023 2023
£000 E00g (s 0o
Trade deblors afler provision for bad debés 8T 37 168 208
Prapayments and accrued Income B3 453 1,255 1,359
Ameunts owed by the Education and Shills Funding Agency a0 &3 787 TET
Total 1,606 1,560 2,208 2,264
13. CREDMTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
024 2024 023 A3
000 fopa £oo0 £000
Trady creditors 243 b 1375 1,382
VAT 34 - 28 28
Dthar tnxation and social ssourity 174 175 172 178
Aceruals and doferred Incoma 1,580 1,454 Bz 850
Other creditors £32 A3Z a4 354
Daforred Income — governmaent revenue grants a7 aw ki x| 300
Deduerred income = government capits gramts a6 7] ] oea
DHE Loan 500 200
Tatal 3,945 15052 3965 £,013
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CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

College Group Colage
2034 204 2023
L0003 il £ood
Deferred Income = governmant capltal granis 234X 22 422 TE T
HE Laan 1,000 1,080 .
Total Th AT 23 AT 22,724
15, DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Group ard College

The Colisge’s employees belang to two principal pension schemes, tha Teachers” Pensions Scheme England & Walss
(TPS) for academic and related stal, &5 the Local Gowernmant Pamticn Scherma (LGPS) for non-teaching stafl,
which s managed by Cumbria County Gouncil, Both ans muls-employer defimed benafit schemes,

Total pension cost for the year

Coliege  Group  Coflege
2024 S04 2023
£000 £000 Lot
Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions. pakd 1.5 1375 02
Local Gevernment Pansion Schame: Conlrbulions paid &532 BEZ -]
FRS 102 chamge [£2:4] ri 276
Lump sum dafict - -
LGPE enhanced pension change bo stabément of
compraharsng income
Total Pansion Cosls within staff cosis. 2148 2,148 1,853

T pesrsion costs ane assessed in accordance with the advics of indepandent qualiied aciuadies. The ialest fomal
actuarial valsabicrs of he schimes were 5131 March 2020 for tha TPS and 31 March 2022 for the LGPS. ConlribuSions
amounting to E157 858 [(F022:£134,793) were payabile 1o b above schemes al 3 July and ane includes) within
credibors, An snhanced pension provision in respect of unfunded persianars’ banafits is ncluded in provigions detaied

in note 17,
Teachers' Penslon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Schema (TPS) i a sialulory, contributory, defined benedil scheme, governed by the Teachars’
WWWMLMMMMWMHMHMM
esiablishments, including Colleges. Membevship is sulomatic for leachors and lechwers. Teachers and lechwers anx

able 1o opd out of the TPS,

The Teachers” Pension Budgeting and Waluation Accownt

Alhough membsss may be employed by various bociies, thedr eotiremant and ciier persion benefits A 29 o in
regulations made under the Superannuation A 1‘!??uﬂmpi:lt|r|mhh:hlﬂi-pmridbdhl Partament. The TPS
is an unfunded scheme and memban cantibube 6n 5 By B8 y0u §0° BEss — ihase coniribuions, along wilh these
made by employers, 87 oredind fo the Excheguer under avangements governed by the above AcL Raliremant gadg
cihar pensian benedits are pald by public funds provided by Parfament.

This Tedchars” Pessicns Regulations 2000 require am annual accownt, the Teachers' Pension BudgeSing and 'VakaasSon
Aozzaani, io by kept of receipls and expendiure (induding the cost of pension increases). Froem 1 F_ﬂ'ﬂml.m
focourt has baan sradited with & real rade of refumm wiich I8 eguiyaianl 1o assuming Bhal the balance in the Account
is imvested in nodonal irvesimenis thad produce that eead rale of rebuem,

The lates! aciuarial revies of the TPS was chmied oul a8 al 31 Merch 2020, The valualion report was published by e
Deparirrsnl for Educafion (i Department) in Octobsr 2023, Tha valuation reparted tolal scheame abiiies (pansion
cxsrently in payment and the estimated cosd of future benefits) for service at the effeciive dale of £252 billion, and
motional assets (estimaled future confributions: 1ogethar with the moticnal investments. held at the vakistion date) of
E222 bllion ghing @ rofional past service deficl of £40 bilion (compared fo £22 billlon in the 2016 valzation) As &
resul of the valuation, new employer coniribulion rales rose o 20.88% fom Apddl 2024 (companed to 22.68% from

Spptemnber 2018 omwands).
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A full copy of the valuaSion fped and supporing documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The pesvsicn costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,005,351. (2022: £640,147)
FRS 102 [1§)

Under e definitions sal out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a mulb-employer schame. The Colisgs is waable 1o idenily
it5 share of the underying assets and hablities of the schems.

Accondingly, the Coliege has (aken sdvartsge of the exemption in FRS 107 and kes sccountsd o its contrbuticns o
Ehe schame & if it were a defined costributlon schame. The College has set oul above the infemation Bvailabike on
Ehe deficit in the schemne and the implications for the Colioge in lorms of the Bnlicpated conkribution rafes.

Lol Govarmment Penslon Schemn

The LGPS is a unded defined benafi schams, with [he assets held in sepanbs lusds sdministered by Curbeia Counly

The liotail contribulion made for the et ended 31 July 2024 was EBS1,534 (2023 ET&5.013) of which
conbifutions tolalled EE38 244 (2032 £535 639) and employess contribulions totaled £216,290 (2022 £199.374).
The agreed contribation eates for future years is 18 5% for smployens; and employees rabes ane caloulated using LGRS
= Empiayes Conlributicns Prossdures.

FRS 102

The folowing informalion is based upen & full valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022, updated b 31 July 2024 by &
gaaiified indapandant sctuary.

At 31 July Al I1 Juiy
04 20323
Riatn of increate in salares 4% 7%
Rate of increass lor pensicns in paymantfinfiation 8% 8%
DEcount rale for scheme liabities 35N 1%
Irflafion assumpten (CPT) 2.7% 27%
Commundation of pensions bo lump fums S0 0%

The above assumplions were 25 at 31" July 2024,

The cumend moralty sssumpbions include sufficient aliowance Bar fubuie improwements in mortalily rates. The
#idurid b sxpectations on retieemani age 65 s

A 31 July
24
Ratirng foday
Mates 244 yaars
Famales 238 yoars
Retiring in 30 yeam
M aies 227 years
Famalgs 25,8 years
Sensitivity Anabysis
Af 31 July
24
Crimacmand rabe +0. 5% (0,196 1T 428
Dipoount rabe <0.5% [1.1%) (17.428)
wm—i PEAT HRRE 19,407
Morakty assumplion = 1 year decneese (19,407}
CP1 rate +0.25% (0.1%)
CPY rabe 0 25% (0. 1%} 10709

(19,799
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AL T July

21.4 years
23.8 yaars

Z2.7 years
25.6 yaars

Af 31 July
2023

16,424
[16.424)

18,2681
{18.381)

18,635
eeE)




The Group and College’s shane of assets in the scheme and the expeched rates of returm wepe:

Vislue 21 Valos at 1
duly 2034 duly 2023
a0
Equities. EE1E E78E
Government Bonds 330 2 TES
Othae Bonds - -
Brisoar 1,838 1,678
Caah A447 455
Crihar i.252 8,308
Total falr plan vakue of assels d3.543 1,523
Pracant valus of fundad abies: 18,975 AT 36T
Mot panslon Assst 4,568 1,685
Weighted average expectad long term rate of retum 4.9% B.A%
Actual return on plan assets 1,847 kL 1]
Yoar Yelr
J :n‘:a:- hrgm:#
Lﬁm' E00D
Amcunis recognised in the siatemants comprahansive come
reflect of the plan
Amounts incleded in salf cosls
Cument sorvice oosts 533 Bag
Total cperating charge Bag
Ameaunt imvalved in iImvestment costs
el Interest oot {20d4) 48
Pension finance cosis {204) 45
Amount recognised In comprehensive incoma
Falurn on plan atais -1 ]-] {B55)
Expariencs gainsflosses) arsing on tha schema abdities (187} 6313
Effect 6r non-recegntion of net defined benefit assel (512} {3,686)
Amount recognised In cther comprehansive income 203 2,002
Movement in deficit In year
{Deeehicil) i schaena at 1 Augusl - {1,677)
Meervaemant in s
Change in bass of valuation of scheme pssels
Currend sendos cost (535 (R4}
Employer condributions 1] 58
Pt sarvics comt = =
Curtailments - -
Adminisiration expenses {28 (26}
Het interest cosi 204 (L]
Achuanal (leasonin 528 5,658
Effect on non-recognition of net defined benefit asset i {3.555)

SurplusiDeficit) in scheme af 31 July

In accordance with paragraph 54 of IAS 19 and FARC 144, we have considesad the impact of 8n asse] Cedling on he
recegniion of 33883 in [he Sialerment of Financial Posilion. As atsel cailing i thw bril abowe which furler increases in nit
pensian assels coase ko be recogntsed for ascsuniing parposes, As at 31® July 2024, an asssd celing botalling £912 000
was applied to imit the necognition of @ surplus an the schema,

4%



Changes in the present wvalue of defined bBenafit
obligatians

Defirsed benefit
Liatd@itinn at start of period
Cufrent senvice st

Pasl Sorvice Costs

Ievievest cost

Ermgioyee contrstions
Actuanal [gain)loss
Benedits [paid)

Curailmanis

Defined banefit
Liabiities at end of pariod

Changes in falr value of plan ssasls

Fair value of plan
Assats al start of period

Change in basts of valistion of scheme assels

Inlerest on plan assets
Rulum cn plan aseeis
Adminisiralion Experaes
Ernpleyer condributions
Empioyee contributions
Bty paid

Fair value of plan
Agsols at end of period

Year
Endad 31
Judy 2024
000

15T
£39

-1
218
14T
EEL

18,575

a.523

.10
g1
(28;
E45
-]

(731}

23,543

The estimated valus of smployer canlrbutions: for the year ondad 31 July 2025 i £548.000 [2023: 524,000,

History of sxperiencs gains and losses

Difforence betwaan the
expecied and actual retuems
4 BSselky:

Amount £000
Percentage of schema
EI- S EES

Exparisnce gains and
logaes on schome asmls:

Amount £000
Percontage of schama
liakifities.

Talal amount necognised in
SOCI:

Amount E000

Percentage of schems
laklities

2024

1713

816
4.3%

83
1.8%

241
1A%

4G

(583)
(2.7%)

3T

T
i7.8%

2021

25
1%

2.75)
12.6%

1,558
2%

151
i8]

23242

196
{B.113)

A7.B6T

£1,585

Tad

195
(528)
21,523

154
(0.6%)



16. PROVISHONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Group and College

Pension Pension
Enbancemant Enkancemnant

Frowision Frowision
2004 2023
fililv] oo
AL 1 August 2023 245 235
intarest 12 B
Actuarial (gainMoss 4] 18
Transferred o statoment of compralenilie incaiss {22) (26)
At 3 Judy 2024 218 225

The enhanced pension peovision relales to the cost of SEaf wha have alfeady ke the College's amploymant and comimmanis
for reciganisalion costs from which the Cobegs cnnol reasonably withdraw al the balance sheet dale, This provision has bean
mcalculsied in sccordance with guidancs ssued by the funding bodies,

The principsl assumplions o (his Calculalion ane:

024 202F
ARestatod
rahe & 0% 5%
Inberest abs 2.8% 5%
e T 2.8%
Fraded Furnded
Frovigion Frovisdon
aaf atit
Provision Provisdian
2024 2023
£ong £
AT August 2023 0,000
Expenditure in the period 140,000
AL 3 July 2024 - -
The prosstsion nefabes fo “al risk” ncome ardsing from ESFA audit in Septembar and Oclaber 2022
17, RESERVES
REVALUATION RESERVE
Callage Gropp Colege LE T
2024 2024 gy 2023
000 il £000 friinl
A1 August 2023 T wT 3T awr
Released in year 3 M
At 31 July 2024
S 145 148 awr ar

=0
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DESMGMNATED RESERYVES
Plansd Maintenances and Replacement Programma

35 Pitch Sink Fund
Az a8k 1 August 203
Mavemen! i desgnated eV
As at M July 2034

MOVEMENT ON GENERAL RESERVES ACCOUNT

AL T Augesd 2023

Translers inifom) designabed resenes

[Deaefici) oo continuing cperations afer
depredation of assels al valuation, exceptional Bems and tax

AL 3 July 2024
Balance representad by:
Pansicnh fasane

Incame and expenditore account resanm sxcluding pendion
TESETYE

AL 21 July 2024

175
]

)
H

4,882

(2%

4,052

4,052

4,052

17a

=

455

(25

(rnay

4,094

4,004

4,004

1TE

£
HH

4 876

{25)

{2.083)

=

4,88

4852

150

175

4,520

[25)

[2.050)
4,889

4 5B

458D

Resiricted funds on Multiply contract were HIL as year-snd, inceme received In year of £47,928 with activity io this
value delivered and charged as sxponsos, '

10

CAMTAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitmonts ralatas 16 Civil Engineering Training
Canfre, Refectory Infrastruciure, digital sccelersiar hub,
SOF fund, ICT divices, sport hall oo, maln site capital
grant funded mprovement works,

Capital cemmiimends

Cammitments contracted for a1 31 July

Authorised bul not contracted a8 31 July

Tuatal

1|

Colloge
ke
E00¢

a7

187

Growp
2024
£0og

187

187

College
oy
£000

g 8

gi2

B &

iz



20, FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
AR July 2024 R Collps had manimum lease pinhants whder non-cancelable oparsing leases a5 ioliows

Group and College
Land angd  Land angd Other Other
buifdings  Bulldings

2024 2023 204 20T
£o00 £000 £000 E£000
= 44 18 E
Expiring within one year 2
Expiring badwean bwe and ve years inclusive
Expising afver five years
3 44 28 &

21, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to the natura of the College’s operations and the composition of the board of govemors
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations) it is inevitable that fransactions
will fake place with organisations in which a member of the board of governmors may have an

interest. All ransactions involving organisations in which a member of the board of governors
may hawve an interest are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the College's financial

regulations and normal procurement procedures. Mo transactions were identified in respect of
govamors which should be disclosed.

In year, 8 governor with substantial nuclear engineering experience supported the college on a
consultancy basis with the Seliafield Lid apprenticeship confract tender document. This was in

line with Charity Commission guidance and approved by the governing bady, the value of the
work amounted E3 550 (2023:Nil).

There were no expenses paid to Governors in 2023-24,

The Mational College for Muclear joint venture vehicle was astablished in 2017 as we do not hold
a conirolling interest, in the interests of full fransparency we report the following, Related party
transactions amount 1o £1,767 (2023; £4,266), being payment of Consultancy fees and part sai
up cosls agreed over § years (2020 insurance cover and audit fees for the Mational College for
Nuchear). Al the year-end date the National College for Nuclear owed £10,734 {£12,501 Jin respact

of the transactions

In July 2020, the College esiablished a fully owned subsidiary company, Lakes College
Enterprises Lid, as a vehicla to provide senices to the College. On 1 August 2020 out-sourced
cleaning staff were transferred to this subsidiary company which will provide cleaning services
o the coliege. 3 stall were part seconded [o the subsidiary company to manage the company
and services, 2 Governors have been appointed to the Board. Om 1% July 2021, cul-sourced
catering provision transferred to the company. Related part transactions in the year amounted
bo £253,640 (2023:£238 457). At the year end date Lakes College Enterprises Limited owed
£48,174 (E2023: £9,418) to the College and the College owed EBD,07TE (2023; E46,403) to Lakes

College Enterprises Lid.

Transactions with the funding bodies and OfS are detailed in notes 1, 14 and 15.
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INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

In March 2017 the College entered into a joint venture with Sellafield Lid, EDF Energy,
Bridgwater and Taunton Callege, University of Bristol and University of Cumbria to form the
National College for Nuclear, one of the government's flag-ship national colleges,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

in autumn 2023 the Corporation established a financial recovery plan which was monitored by the
Corporation in dedicated working groups and existing committees. With a worsening cash position
and substantial in year T-level clawback, the colage requested Department for Education support
with a loan of £1.5M to support working capital, received in June 2024. This automatically placed the
college into formal financial intervention with FE Commissioner (FEC) support. The working capital
loan provides stronger cash raservas. The cash balances, gross of restricled cash, have remained
above £1.5m io date.

On-going close monitoring of the college finances is accompanied by a formal FEC Strategic
Options Appraisal (SPA) which commenced in November 2024 and is due to complete in March
2025. The purpose of the SPA is to test the college’s future sustainability and long-term financial
resilience, framed by the college’s ability fo continue to deliver high quality education and skills
training. The SPA will include a standalone option compared to the option of merging with another
college. The SPA will make recommeandations based on consideration of the paténtial benafits of
merger and compare this with a standalone option,

Where a merger is the recommended oulcome, the aim will be to secure implementation of the
merger by August 2025,
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GOVERNING BODY:
were as

Tha Ehie and up bo the dabe af -

el A e e | o

=¥ oiffics Camamibieg
Meatings 2023-24
Corparatin

Bir felkse Priestiey 17Oy dyma 100%
Chair froem DUDN/22-3107724 2604 Commitiess 100%
Chuaiity Working Graup member BUTTAT

Safeguarding and Pegvant Link Govamer TR
Finance and Corporate Working Group Member
Phil Jardine IGE] Corporalion 9%
Vice Chair from 0T/0222-31/0724 {re-appointmenl) 2TAEM ] Commitiess 100%
Cluality Working Greap Mambar A8
Ghakr, Finance and Comporate Working Groes Lyl v
Financial Pecovery Group 12081
FIN 224 B rmihg
Dimpcior, Lakes Coflege Enteprises Lid
2000820

Ms Elaine Clinion 01mana Tyr Corporaiin 52 %
Wice Chair, Comparation from 0108724 010420 276y Comminess 100%
Chak, Saarch and Govemancs Commillng [shF ] 4 ¥R

Commilies Member
Chair Chaaiity Group
Eguakly and Diveveity and Legenar Suppen Link Gaowemor
Financial Recoeny Grown Trom Q10724

Mr Pader Elwod o 1y ) 1 yrs Carporation &
Member, Finance and Caporale Working Goup 0 3y Commisess BT 5%
Finarcial Rscowiry Griup 0180124 4 y8

3 Alison Hampsan (L Tyr | S Comaration 75%
Cruaklty Warking Group Maenbar Q10320 215y Commitiees 100%
Remungration Commities Member il &

Mr Higel Hollday HE G 1y Cesporation 50%
Chak, Corparalicn Fnsm (10024 0020 LTSy Commitess 80%
Remunaration Commities membgr Q1023 Ayrs
Finmnos and Corporate Working Group
Member of Cualty Warking Group

| Dbecior, Lakes College Entsrpiaes Lid L

Wirs Deraso Fole T0/S18 Tyr Corporation 100%
fusde Commitiea Mambear oansna Jurs Committens 509%
Search and Goverdnes Cammiftas Mambet Qi 4 yrs

“r Rooer Mibam TVOS18 W Carporation 83%
Chair, Audi Coenrmitlos freen 2301920 ey Ayes Cammitises T0%
Financlal Recovery Group oo 4yTs

Iér Pasd Hardan a1 1y 130224 T

1133 3ws

Rirz Claire Dunan [T LK Carporation 5%
Firdnea and Corparate WWarking Group mambar L1 e dyrs Cammitiees 30%
Ramuneration Commities membar

Mrs Val Palster CIEETE) Tyt Conporation 81%

Audil Commitleg Mamber 01124 s Commiliees 100%

M= il Steswar 2311723 15

EEAlE 3 yrs

* Appointments are made for one year in the first instarce and then three years {egusalent b 8 feuryar lerm of office],
? iir Hardon was granied a leave of absencs in 2033-24 owing o family Bness and subsequently resigned from the Bodasd,
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Calegory Dater of Term | Date of Atinndance
appointmond and | al Resignation | Corporation &
re-appairtments Cormmithes

S’ s ot

tr Chris Mattress (Principal) oA 3 Compoeation 1004

Search and Governance Commings Commitiaes 50%
Cumbria Collages Lid Baard

ﬁml:n-nmﬂm—mmnmm 150316

Likis Lid - Crrascior TOAOTIR0

M Lee Todd 177322 1y | A31/07i24 Carpesalion K74
Al Commines 1703 Iym Commitiees 5I%

Mels Kirglan Willismaon FEEGETERY 1y RIBOTIZE Camporalion 92%

Kt ERzabath Hub 2EA0A4 1y r'd

WA Tyler Milingtoe T T Ty | 2o nia

Student Gavarnars

L5 Sophie Kelly 2123 iyr T
27024 1 yr

Mis Emily-Fioss Lane FETETE] Tyr | 31407724 60

| Co-opled Commities Members

Mrs Momma Boyes [T IFF] Tyr Autil Commillge

Co-opted mamba of the Auadt Commilies o1ER3 Jyrs: 100

| Director, Lakes College Enterprises Lid miRa

REPORTING COMMITTEES AT YEAR END

AT Commiies: (5 Fomunerabon, [4)

A Mhum (Chei) A Hampean

f%ﬂwﬂpﬂm M Prigsiiay
M Holiday (Chain)

0 oo Coun

E Civdan

W Pallisler

Finance and Corparade Wardking Group: |5

P Jarding (Chair}
P Ewoog
! Primstiey

C Dunn
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REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORPORATION OF
LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE
EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15® November 2021 and further to the
requiremenis and conditions of funding in the ESFA's grant funding agreements and conlracts, or those of
any other public funder, we have camied oul an engagement to obtaln limited assurance about whether
anything has come to our attention that would suggest that in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed
and incomne received by Lakes College during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied
o the purposes idenlified by Parfiament and the financial ransactions do not conform to the autharities which
govern tham.

The framework that has been applied is sel out in the Post-18 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by
the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concarming adult education notified by a relevant funder,
In line with this framework, our work has spacifically not considered income received from the main funding
grants ganerated through the Individualised Learner Recond {ILR) data returns, fior which the ESFA has other
assurance arrangemenis in place.

This report is mada solely to the corporation of Lakes College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement |efter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Lakes
College and the ESFA those malters we are required o state in a report and for no oiher purpose. To the
fullest extent permitied by law, we do nol accepl, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the
corporation of Lakes College and the ESFA for our work, for this repart, or for the conclusion wa have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Lakes College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Lakes College is responsible, under the requiremenis of the Further and Higher Education
Act 1892, subsequent lagislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
Iransactions conform to the authonties which govern them,

Our responsabilities for this engagement are established in the Unitad Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are io obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letier and the
requiremenis of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come (o our atiention in carrying out our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure discussed and income received during the
period 1 August 2022 ta 31 July 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parfiament or that the
financial transactions do not conferm ta the authovities which govem them

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited
assurance engagement as defined in that framewark.

The chbjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procadures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence lo express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limited assurance engagement is more limdled in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagemenl. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant lo the regularity of the college’s
income and expenditure.
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REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE CORPORATION OF
LAKES COLLEGE AND SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION ACTING THROUGH THE

EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (the ESFA)

The work underiaken to draw our conclusion includes:

A raview of the accuracy of the corporation’s self-assessment of compliance with regulanty and
propriety requirements and review of appropriate evidence and documeniation,

Review of expenditure systems for compliance with corporation palicy and scheme of delegation.
Consideration of stalf expense claims in line with policy.

Review of procedures in respect of government procurement cards.

Review of corporation minutes.
Congideration of advisory matters from internal auditor's reports.

Conclusion
Im the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 has not been
applied to purpases intended by Parliament and the financial ransaclions do nat conform fo the autharities

which govern them.

(Bvon (o

Karen Ras, FCCA

For and on behalf of

Armstrong Watson Audit Limited

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

DAT.E;ch Decembaer 2024
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